
WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA - AMENDED 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2022 - 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. RECOGNITION OF EMPLOYEES:

1. Kaleb Pait, Parks Maintenance Worker, Parks and Recreation Department.

VII. RESIGNATION OF MARK C. SMITH, PITT COUNTY COMMISSIONER.

VIII. APPOINTMENT OF VACANT COUNCIL SEAT.

IX. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO-TEM.

X. PRESENTATIONS:

1. 2021-2022 FY Audit, Michael Jordan and James Overton, CRI LLC of Goldsboro.

2. Subdivision Development Fee, The Wooten Company and Staff.

XI. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1. Rezoning Request - Parcels 67224, 68790, and 70655. (Tabled from November 14, 2022
Meeting).

XII. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on
any other matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing
section of the agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public
comment on the item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting,
except during the Public Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are
limited to a maximum of three minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the
Council on a single matter. The Town Council may elect to take no action on the matter
addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for further consideration at a future Council
meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition. Copies of the Town Public
Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

XIII. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be
discussed by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be
removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to
address an item or ask questions.

1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes:
➢ November 14, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes.



2. Approval of 2023 calendars
➢ Draft 2023 Regular Council Meeting Calendar; and
➢ Draft 2023-2024 Budget Calendar.

3. Budget Amendment 2022-2023-4.

4. Schedule Public Hearing – Rezoning Request - Southbrook PUD for January 9. 2023.

XIV. OLD BUSINESS:

1. Ange Street Sidewalk Extension Contract Award.

2. Downtown Parking Project Update.

3. Approval for County Commissioner Mark Smith to Fulfill his term as a CMSD Board
Member.

XV. NEW BUSINESS:

1. Council Endorsement of Sheppard Library Proposal Regarding the Sheppard Library Board
Composition.

XVI. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS:

1. Rental Agreement with Daughtridge Gas on Old Hwy 11. (Councilman Moore).

XVII. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS:

XVIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

• Human Relations Board Meeting: Thursday, December 15, 2022 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall
Executive Conference Room.

• Shop with a Cop: Saturday, December 17, 2022.

• Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, December 19, 2022 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall
Assembly Room.

• Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, December 20, 2022 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall
Assembly Room.

• Christmas Holidays: Friday, December 23, 2022, Monday, December 26, 2022, and
Tuesday, December 27, 2022 – Town Offices Closed.

• New Year’s Day Holiday: Monday, January 2, 2023 – Town Offices Closed.

• Pitt County Legislative Breakfast Meeting: Friday, January 6, 2023 from 8:00 am - 9:00 am;
Eastern Area Health Education Center, 2600 W. Arlington Blvd., Greenville, NC.

• Regular Town Council Meeting: Monday, January 9, 2023 @ 7:00 pm.

XIX. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN
MANAGER.

XX. ADJOURN.

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 756-2221 ext. 2344 at least forty-eight (48) 
hours prior to the meeting. (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

2



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: Presentations 

Meeting Date: December 12, 2022 

Presenter: Jessica Manning, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Presentation of the 2021-2022 Audit Report. 

Action Requested: Accept the Audit Report. 

Attachment: Presentation will be provided once we have it from CRI. 

Prepared By: Jessica Manning, Finance Director Date: 12/5/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 12/5/2022 ☒ TM: 12/8/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 12/8/2022

Supporting Documentation 

Mr. Michael Jordan and Mr. James Overton will be here to present the 2021-2022 audit findings. Mr. Jordan 

is a partner with Carr, Riggs and Ingram LLC located in the Goldsboro office. We will email Council a link to 

the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, and provide Council a hard copy once printing has been 

completed. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends acceptance of the Audit Report. 

3



1

To
w

n
 o

f 
W

in
te

rv
ill

e
A

n
n

u
al

 C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
ve

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
2

2

4



2

G
e

n
e

ra
l F

u
n

d
 

•
U

n
as

si
gn

ed
 f

u
n

d
 b

al
an

ce
 

an
d

 a
s 

a 
p

er
ce

n
ta

ge
 o

f 
ge

n
er

al
 f

u
n

d
 e

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s:

–
2

0
2

2
 $

1
0

,7
9

7
,4

1
0

 –
1

1
8

.4
4

%

–
2

0
2

1
 $

9
,3

7
9

,1
2

5
 –

1
0

3
.9

6
%

–
2

0
2

0
 $

7
,1

0
2

,6
0

5
 –

6
7

.7
8

%

–
2

0
1

9
 $

5
,3

3
7

,7
9

6
 –

5
6

.0
1

%

–
2

0
1

8
 $

5
,4

2
8

,5
8

5
 –

5
9

.7
6

%

–
2

0
1

7
 $

5
,9

1
3

,7
6

8
 –

8
3

.0
8

%

–
2

0
1

6
 $

5
,2

1
4

,9
5

5
 –

7
5

.6
7

%

–
2

0
1

5
 $

5
,4

1
3

,8
1

4
 –

8
4

.3
8

%

–
2

0
1

4
 $

4
,2

3
6

,2
0

7
 –

6
3

.7
1

%

–
2

0
1

3
 $

3
,2

8
9

,5
8

2
 –

5
6

.5
3

%

5



3

G
e

n
e

ra
l F

u
n

d

•
To

ta
l f

u
n

d
 b

al
an

ce
 a

n
d

 a
s 

a 
p

er
ce

n
ta

ge
 o

f 
ge

n
e

ra
l f

u
n

d
 

ex
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s:
–

2
0

2
2

 $
1

3
,4

4
2

,0
0

7
 –

1
4

7
.4

5
%

–
2

0
2

1
 $

1
1

,4
8

0
,6

89
 –

1
2

7
.2

6
%

–
2

0
2

0
   

$
8

,8
3

1
,9

3
6

 –
8

4
.2

8
%

–
2

0
1

9
 

$
9

,4
9

4
,6

7
6

 –
9

9
.6

3
%

–
2

0
1

8
 

$
9

,0
3

3
,6

3
8

 –
9

9
.4

5
%

•
In

cl
u

d
es

 n
o

n
-s

p
en

d
ab

le
, 

re
st

ri
ct

ed
, c

o
m

m
it

te
d

, 
as

si
gn

ed
, u

n
as

si
gn

ed

–
2

0
1

7
   

$
8

,5
3

7
,6

8
7

 –
1

1
9

.9
5

%

–
2

0
1

6
   

$
7

,8
9

3
,7

3
1

 –
1

1
4

.5
4

%

–
2

0
1

5
   

$
7

,3
4

2
,4

4
1

 –
1

1
4

.4
4

%

–
2

0
1

4
   

$
6

,2
6

6
,0

1
0

 –
9

4
.2

4
%

–
2

0
1

3
   

$
5

,3
5

3
,5

1
4

 –
9

1
.9

9
%

6



4

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
ta

l F
u

n
d

s 
[G

e
n

e
ra

l F
u

n
d

]

•
R

ev
en

u
es

:

–
2

0
2

2
 $

1
0

,4
2

7
,1

7
9

–
2

0
2

1
 $

9
,8

4
9

,1
3

0

–
2

0
2

0
 $

9
,3

1
0

,3
9

0

–
2

0
1

9
 $

8
,4

2
3

,9
2

5

–
2

0
1

8
 $

7
,9

3
9

,0
2

5

–
2

0
1

7
 $

7
,4

8
2

,1
1

4

–
2

0
1

6
 $

7
,2

2
0

,1
2

0

–
2

0
1

5
 $

7
,0

6
6

,9
5

0

–
2

0
1

4
 $

6
,8

1
6

,5
3

7

–
2

0
1

3
 $

6
,4

5
4

,1
1

8

7



5

G
e

n
e

ra
l F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

ge
ta

ry
 D

at
a

•
2

0
2

2
 B

u
d

ge
te

d
 v

s.
 A

ct
u

al
 

R
ev

en
u

es

–
$

1
0

,7
0

7
,9

35
 v

s.
 $

1
0

,4
2

7
,1

7
9

•
2

0
2

1
 B

u
d

ge
te

d
 v

s.
 A

ct
u

al
 

R
ev

en
u

es
 

–
$

9
,7

3
1

,1
1

5
 v

s.
 $

9
,8

4
9

,1
3

0

•
2

0
2

0
 B

u
d

ge
te

d
 v

s.
 A

ct
u

al
 

R
ev

en
u

es
 

–
$

8
,9

6
2

,8
8

8
 v

s.
 $

9
,3

1
0

,3
9

0

•
2

0
1

9
 B

u
d

ge
te

d
 v

s.
 A

ct
u

al
 

R
ev

en
u

es
 

–
$

8
,4

3
3

,2
0

8
 v

s.
 $

8
,4

2
3

,9
2

5

•
2

0
1

8
 B

u
d

ge
te

d
 v

s.
 A

ct
u

al
 

R
ev

en
u

es

–
$

7
,6

5
0

,5
8

4
 v

s.
 $

7
,9

3
9

,0
2

5

•
2

0
1

7
 B

u
d

ge
te

d
 v

s.
 A

ct
u

al
 

R
ev

en
u

es
 

–
$

7
,3

2
6

,8
3

7
 v

s.
 $

7
,4

8
2

,1
1

4

•
2

0
1

6
 B

u
d

ge
te

d
 v

s.
 A

ct
u

al
 

R
ev

en
u

es
 

–
$

7
,1

5
7

,7
7

9
 v

s.
 $

7
,2

2
0

,1
2

0

•
2

0
1

5
 B

u
d

ge
te

d
 v

s.
 A

ct
u

al
 

R
ev

en
u

es
 

–
$

6
,5

9
9

,5
4

4
 v

s.
 $

7
,0

6
6

,9
5

0

8



6

G
e

n
e

ra
l F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

ge
ta

ry
 D

at
a

•
2

0
2

2
 B

u
d

ge
te

d
 v

s.
 A

ct
u

al
 

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s

–
$

1
3

,7
2

7
,5

60
 v

s.
 $

9
,1

1
5

,8
6

1

•
2

0
2

1
 B

u
d

ge
te

d
 v

s.
 A

ct
u

al
 

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s

–
$

1
2

,7
6

5
,9

92
 v

s.
 $

9
,0

2
1

,4
5

2

•
2

0
2

0
 B

u
d

ge
te

d
 v

s.
 A

ct
u

al
 

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s

–
$

1
3

,2
4

0
,2

84
 v

s.
 $

1
0

,4
7

8
,8

8
1

•
2

0
1

9
 B

u
d

ge
te

d
 v

s.
 A

ct
u

al
 

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s

–
$

1
3

,8
4

8
,0

3
0

 v
s.

 $
9

,5
2

9
,2

0
4

•
2

0
1

8
 B

u
d

ge
te

d
 v

s.
 A

ct
u

al
 

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s

–
$

1
1

,5
7

2
,7

01
 v

s.
 $

7
,8

1
2

,6
1

9

•
2

0
1

7
 B

u
d

ge
te

d
 v

s.
 A

ct
u

al
 

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s

–
$

8
,6

0
3

,8
6

9
 v

s.
 $

7
,1

1
7

,4
3

7

•
2

0
1

6
 B

u
d

ge
te

d
 v

s.
 A

ct
u

al
 

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s

–
$

8
,2

3
2

,1
7

1
 v

s.
 $

6
,8

9
1

,4
3

2

•
2

0
1

5
 B

u
d

ge
te

d
 v

s.
 A

ct
u

al
 

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s

–
$

7
,5

8
6

,4
7

2
 v

s.
 $

6
,4

1
6

,2
3

0

9



7

P
ro

p
ri

et
ar

y 
Fu

n
d

 N
et

 P
o

si
ti

o
n

•
W

at
er

 F
u

n
d

:

–
2

0
2

2
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
1

,9
7

0
,2

7
1

–
2

0
2

1
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
1

,8
8

5
,0

8
3

–
2

0
2

0
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
1

,8
0

7
,4

6
2

–
2

0
1

9
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
1

,2
4

9
,1

8
0

–
2

0
1

8
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
1

,3
8

0
,0

1
0

–
2

0
1

7
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
1

,5
7

1
,6

2
3

–
2

0
1

6
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
1

,5
5

0
,0

9
1

•
El

ec
tr

ic
 F

u
n

d
:

–
2

0
2

2
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
7

,7
2

5
,4

0
0

–
2

0
2

1
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
8

,2
6

0
,5

9
9

–
2

0
2

0
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
7

,4
2

4
,8

7
3

–
2

0
1

9
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
7

,1
5

9
,9

2
7

–
2

0
1

8
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
7

,1
4

3
,1

2
3

–
2

0
1

7
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
6

,5
5

4
,8

0
1

–
2

0
1

6
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
5

,9
3

4
,4

8
2

10



8

P
ro

p
ri

et
ar

y 
Fu

n
d

 N
et

 P
o

si
ti

o
n

•
Se

w
er

 F
u

n
d

:

–
2

0
2

2
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
(4

6
7

,1
7

5
) 

–
2

0
2

1
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
6

9
8

,1
1

3

–
2

0
2

0
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
6

3
7

,9
2

8

–
2

0
1

9
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
3

1
8

,9
8

6

–
2

0
1

8
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
9

8
1

,2
1

4

–
2

0
1

7
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
9

2
0

,4
5

3

–
2

0
1

6
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
8

3
0

,2
2

3

•
St

o
rm

w
at

er
Fu

n
d

:

–
2

0
2

2
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
1

,1
3

0
,0

2
8

 

–
2

0
2

1
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
8

9
3

,0
9

5

–
2

0
2

0
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
5

9
1

,5
1

5

–
2

0
1

9
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
3

5
0

,2
4

6

–
2

0
1

8
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
2

1
3

,3
2

5

–
2

0
1

7
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
1

1
3

,3
0

3

–
2

0
1

6
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 $
1

6
0

,1
9

5

11



9

C
as

h
 B

al
an

ce
s 

&
 In

ve
st

m
e

n
ts

•
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l F
u

n
d

s:
–

U
n

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

•
2

0
2

2
 $

1
2

,0
2

0
,8

7
8

•
2

0
2

1
 $

1
0

,5
9

8
,7

5
2

•
2

0
2

0
 $

1
0

,7
9

8
,8

6
5

•
2

0
1

9
 $

8
,2

2
6

,3
80

•
2

0
1

8
 $

1
1

,7
6

8
,2

3
6

•
2

0
1

7
 $

7
,1

1
3

,7
98

•
2

0
1

6
 $

6
,3

9
6

,7
94

•
2

0
1

5
 $

5
,9

4
6

,3
3

4

•
P

ro
p

ri
et

ar
y 

Fu
n

d
s:

–
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 
•

2
0

2
2

 $
8

,5
0

4
,7

78
•

2
0

2
1

 $
1

0
,4

3
7

,6
5

4
•

2
0

2
0

 $
6

,1
0

9
,3

83
•

2
0

1
9

 $
7

,5
0

0
,3

58
•

2
0

1
8

 $
4

,4
0

0
,7

49
•

2
0

1
7

 $
7

,7
2

5
,9

58
•

2
0

1
6

 $
7

,3
4

3
,0

54
•

2
0

1
5

 $
5

,9
4

6
,3

3
4

12



1
0

P
o

w
e

ll 
B

ill
 F

u
n

d

•
2

0
2

2
:

–
C

as
h

 b
al

an
ce

 $
4

8
8

,8
0

9

–
St

at
e 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 $
3

1
0

,0
9

7

•
2

0
2

1
:

–
C

as
h

 b
al

an
ce

 $
2

0
3

,0
3

6

–
St

at
e 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 $
2

4
8

,1
7

9

•
2

0
2

0
:

–
C

as
h

 b
al

an
ce

 $
2

4
1

,9
6

9

–
St

at
e 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 $
2

5
8

,1
2

4

•
2

0
1

9
:

–
C

as
h

 b
al

an
ce

 $
3

7
9

,8
3

7

–
St

at
e 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 $
2

5
7

,4
5

0

•
2

0
1

8
:

–
C

as
h

 b
al

an
ce

 $
9

6
4

,3
5

5

–
St

at
e 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 $
2

5
9

,0
7

2

•
2

0
1

7
:

–
C

as
h

 b
al

an
ce

 $
8

0
8

,2
1

6

–
St

at
e 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 $
2

6
0

,0
9

2

•
2

0
1

6
:

–
C

as
h

 b
al

an
ce

 $
1

,0
7

6
,3

7
2

–
St

at
e 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 $
2

6
4

,2
8

2

13



1
1

Fu
n

d
 B

al
an

ce
 –

G
e

n
e

ra
l F

u
n

d

To
w

n
 o

f 
W

in
te

rv
ill

e,
 N

o
rt

h
 C

ar
o

lin
a

Fu
n

d
 B

al
an

ce
 -

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

In
ve

n
to

ri
es

 -
 $

7
,9

1
3

St
re

et
s 

P
o

w
el

l B
ill

 -
 $

4
8

8
,8

0
9

P
u

b
lic

 S
af

et
y 

- 
$1

5
1

,8
5

1
C

o
m

m
it

te
d

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

 -
 $

6
9

,3
0

5

R
ec

re
at

io
n

 -
 $

1
5

9
,7

8
2

C
o

m
m

it
te

d
 O

P
EB

 -
 $

7
5

,0
0

0

A
ss

ig
n

ed
 F

B
A

 2
0

2
2 

- 
$5

0
7

,1
0

2
N

o
te

 R
ec

ei
va

b
le

 G
ri

ft
o

n
 -

 $
1

4
,7

5
0

R
es

er
ve

 b
y 

St
at

e 
St

at
u

te
 -

 $
1

,1
7

0
,0

8
5

U
n

as
si

gn
ed

  -
 $

1
0

,7
9

7
,4

1
0

14



1
2

G
e

n
e

ra
l F

u
n

d
 R

ev
e

n
u

e
s

To
w

n
 o

f 
W

in
te

rv
ill

e,
 N

o
rt

h
 C

ar
o

lin
a

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 R
ev

en
u

es

A
d

 v
al

o
re

m
 t

ax
es

 -
 $

4
,6

7
3

,2
9

9
O

th
er

 t
ax

es
 a

n
d

 li
ce

n
se

s 
- 

$2
6

,5
3

5

U
n

re
st

ri
ct

ed
 in

te
rg

o
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l -
 $

3
,6

4
6

,2
1

7
R

es
tr

ic
te

d
 in

te
rg

o
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l -
 $

7
8

7
,4

4
9

P
er

m
it

s 
an

d
 f

ee
s 

- 
$

2
3

,2
7

5
Sa

le
s 

an
d

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

$1
,0

6
8

,9
6

9

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

ea
rn

in
gs

 -
 $

1
4

,5
19

M
is

ce
lla

n
eo

u
s 

- 
$

1
8

6
,9

16

15



1
3

G
e

n
e

ra
l F

u
n

d
 E

xp
e

n
d

it
u

re
s

To
w

n
 o

f 
W

in
te

rv
ill

e,
 N

o
rt

h
 C

ar
o

lin
a

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s

G
en

er
al

 G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
$1

,8
2

4
,2

7
6

P
u

b
lic

 S
af

et
y 

$3
,8

8
8

,5
6

4

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
at

io
n

 $
8

49
,3

0
3

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n
 $

5
7

8
,6

7
8

C
u

lt
u

ra
l a

n
d

 R
ec

re
at

io
n

 $
1

,1
6

4,
44

8
D

eb
t 

Se
rv

ic
e 

$8
1

0,
59

2

16



1
4

M
ic

h
ae

l C
. J

o
rd

an
, C

PA
, P

ar
tn

e
r

G
o

ld
sb

o
ro

9
1

9
-7

5
1

-8
2

9
7

m
jo

rd
an

@
cr

ic
p

a.
co

m

17



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Presentations 

 

Meeting Date: December 12, 2022 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Establishment of System Development Fees for Water and Sewer Infrastructure. 

Action Requested: Adopt the rate for the Water and Sewer fee per connection. 

Attachment: Study provided by The Wooten Company. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager Date: 12/5/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 12/5/2022 ☒ TM: 12/8/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 12/8/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town engaged The Wooten Company at our September 12, 2022 meeting to calculate the statutorily 

allowable amount the Town can charge developers for connections to our water and sewer system. The 

method previously used by the town is no longer valid. The method provided in the study meets the NC 

General Statute that required the calculation of the fee to conform to specific methodology. 

NC Law requires that this work be completed by an outside party. It requires a CPA firm, or Engineering Firm 

to complete the analysis based on three methods. They are the “Buy-in Equity Method”, the “Incremental 

Method” or the “Combined Method”. For the purpose of this study it was determined that that best method 

was the combined method. 

This analysis must be completed and calculated every five years. 

The Wooten Company calculated the maximum fee to be $4,330. This is a combined fee that will generate 

an estimated $2 million for water and $4.7 million for sewer over the next 5 years. 

 

Greenville Utilities start at $1,600 for a ¾ inch connection. 

Town of Ayden Starts at $2,000 for a ¾ inch connection. 

City of Burlington at $2,090 for a ¾ inch connection. 

The determined fee will take effect 45 days from adoption as is required by NC General Statue. 

Budgetary Impact: Estimated $2 million in Water and $4.7 million in Sewer over the next five years. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends adoption of the recommended System Development Fee (SDF) at 
50% of the max recommendation per meter connection size. $2,165 per connection for the ¾ inch 
connection. 

 

18



12/5/2022

1

System Development Fees
Town of Winterville, NC

December 12, 2022

Genevieve Versteeg, PE

Gary Hartong, PE

Presentation Overview

1. What are (and aren’t) System 
Development Fees (SDFs)?

2. What are the 3 methodologies?

3. How are fees calculated?

4. What are projected revenues?

5. Questions

1

2

19



12/5/2022

2

OVERVIEW OF SYSTEM 
DEVELOPMENT FEES

System Development Fees

• Allows local governments to charge developers 
for connection to major arterial, system-wide 
water and sewer utilities

• Cover existing assets with adequate capacity to serve 
new development.

• Cover new assets needed to expand or upgrade system 
to serve new development.

• 3 fee calculation methods prescribed in AWWA 
Manual M1 Chapter VII.2

3

4

20



12/5/2022

3

System Development Fees

SDFs ARE NOT:

• Impact Fees

• Capacity Fees

• Availability Fees

• Tap Fees

• Contractual Fees

• User Charges

SDFs MUST:

• Recover costs for providing 
the same level of service to 
new customers.

• Demonstrate direct, 
reasonable connection to 
the improvements.

• Cover 5- to 10-year analysis 
period, then be reviewed 
and adjusted.

System Development Fees

Quality-Built 
Homes v. 
Town of 

Carthage

Aug 2016

Other 
Pending 

Lawsuits and 
Financial 
Exposure

NC Home 
Builders 

Assoc. and 
NCLM 

negotiations

2017

HB 436 
prescribed 

AWWA 
methodology

July 2017 

SDF 
conformance

July 2018

NCGA House Bill 436 / Session Law 2017-138

5

6

21



12/5/2022

4

DOCUMENTATION NEEDS

SDF

Land Use Plan 
or Zoning Map

Water and 
Sewer 

Consumption

Future 
Development 

Plans

Capital 
Improvements 

Plan

Debt Service 
Schedules

Assets 
Depreciation 
Schedules

7

8

22



12/5/2022

5

THE 3 METHODOLOGIES

Buy-In (Equity) Cost Method

Overview

• Based on the replacement 
value of the asset.

• Each customer buys into a 
portion of the remaining cost 
of the total capacity.

• Appropriate for slow-growing 
areas or ‘oversized’ utilities.

• Cost burden shared by 
existing and new 
development.

Owner’s Existing Assets

Previous water supply & 
treatment plant upgrades

Previous elevated tanks & 
transmission lines

Previous large booster 
pump stations

Previous wastewater 
treatment plant & upgrades

Previous large pump 
stations & outfall lines

Existing Debt Service

9

10

23



12/5/2022

6

Incremental Cost Method

Overview

• Based on the estimated 
value of the new asset.

• Each customer buys into a 
portion of the incremental 
cost of providing expanded 
capacity.

• Appropriate for fast-growing 
areas or ‘undersized’ 
utilities.

• Cost burden covered by new 
development.

Owner’s Planned (CIP) Assets

New water supply sources

Water transmission and 
sewer outfall improvements

New wastewater discharge 
locations

New large pump stations & 
force mains

WTP or WWTP expansions

Combined Cost Method

For situations where existing utilities have remaining 
service life which are useful to both existing and new 
development, but new development also requires utility 
systems expansions or upgrades.

For Winterville…
The Combined Cost Method is appropriate to cover costs 
of previous water and sewer system improvements and 
forthcoming capital improvements projects that will serve 
new growth in the service area.

11

12

24



12/5/2022

7

Buy-In Method
- Depreciate each eligible existing asset per Town schedule
- Determine total net cost for each asset and divide by capacity => $/gal
- Determine project eligibility
- Sum individual net costs => Total Buy-in SDF 

Water Assets
• 8” & 10” Water Mains
• Elevated Storage Tank 

Improvements
• Net Total Cost = $1.9 M
• SDF = $0.70/gal

Wastewater Assets
• 10”-15” Gravity Sewers
• 3 pump stations
• Net Total Cost = $4.7 M
• SDF = $5.36/gal

Incremental Method
- Use only 5-year Town CIP projects
- Divide project cost by additional gallon capacity => $/gal
- Determine project eligibility
- Sum individual net costs =>  Total Incremental SDF

Water Projects

• 8 of 18 projects eligible

• Net Total Cost = $10.1 M

• Min. 25% statute credit

• SDF = $3.31/gal

Wastewater Projects

• 4 of 7 projects eligible

• Net Total Cost = $7.3 M

• Min. 25% statute credit

• SDF = $2.66/gal

13

14

25



12/5/2022

8

Example SDF Calculation for Chapman Lift Station 
Expansion (from Incremental SDF Table)

Unit Charge         = Net Total Cost x % Min. Credit x % SDF Eligible

Unit Design Capacity

Chapman LS Expansion = ($1,750,000 – $0) x (1 – 25%) x 28%

1,872,000 GPD

= $0.20 / gallon

NEXT STEPS

1. Sum all water/sewer unit charges to calculate $/gallon 
capacity.

2. Apply equivalent ratio to the unit charge for different 
size customers.

Must discount grants, or other outside 
funding from total cost.

May include construction, technical services and 
debt service interest costs.

Maximum Allowable Calculated SDFs by Gallon

Combined Cost Method

Meter Size Equivalent Ratio Water Sewer Total 

5/8 1.0 $4.01 $8.02 $12.03

3/4 1.5 $6.02 $12.03 $18.05 

1 2.5 $10.03 $20.05 $30.08 

1-1/2 5.0 $20.05 $40.10 $60.15 

2 8.0 $32.08 $64.16 $96.24 

3 compound 16.0 $64.16 $128.32 $192.48 

4 compound 25.0 $100.25 $200.50 $300.75 

6 compound 50.0 $200.50 $401.00 $601.50 

8 compound 80.0 $320.80 $641.60 $962.40 

10 compound 115.0 $461.15 $922.30 $1,383.45 

12 compound 215.0 $862.15 $1,724.30 $2,586.45 

15

16

26



12/5/2022

9

Maximum Allowable Calculated SDFs by Customer

Combined Cost Method

Meter Size Equivalent Ratio Water Sewer Total 

5/8 (360 GPD connection) 1.0 $1,444 $2,887 $4,330 

3/4 1.5 $2,165 $4,331 $6,490 

1 2.5 $3,609 $7,218 $10,820 

1-1/2 5.0 $7,218 $14,436 $21,650 

2 8.0 $11,549 $23,098 $34,640 

3 16.0 $23,098 $46,195 $69,290 

4 25.0 $36,090 $72,180 $108,270 

6 50.0 $72,180 $144,360 $216,540 

8 80.0 $115,488 $230,976 $346,460 

10 115.0 $166,014 $332,028 $498,040 

12 215.0 $310,374 $620,748 $931,120 

REVENUE FORECASTING

17

18

27



12/5/2022

10

Customer Growth Projection

• Per historical US Census data, Winterville experienced 
annual residential growth rate of 2.8% - 3.0%.

• Current water customers = 4,352 accounts

• Current sewer customers = 4,033 accounts

• Winterville is surrounded by other water and sewer 
service providers (Bell Arthur, Greenville Utilities, etc.)

• Used the 19 proposed developments in near future to 
estimate near-term annual growth rates for water and 
sewer connections.

Customer Growth Projection

Annual Growth Rates

• Future revenue projected for the above listed growth rates

• Future revenue = # of new accounts x SDF $/meter

Connection Type Water Sewer

Residential 3.80% 4.80%

Commercial 0.50% 1.00%

Institutional 1.90% 4.50%

19

20

28



12/5/2022

11

SDF Maximum Revenue Projections

$2,005,922 

$4,743,644 

Combined Water Combined Sewer

Conclusions

1. Winterville may consider implementing SDFs using 
Combined Cost Methodology to collect fees for 
necessary rehabilitation plus expansion/extension.

2. Water and Sewer SDFs have been calculated to reflect 
existing assets with remaining capacity plus certain 
forthcoming capital improvements costs.

3. Maximum-allowable Water SDFs will generate 
approximately $2.0 million over 5 years.

4. Maximum-allowable Sewer SDFs will generate 
approximately $4.7 million over 5 years.

21

22

29



12/5/2022

12

Next Steps

45-Day

Public 
Comment

Public 
Hearing

SDF 
Adoption 
by Board

Water SDFs in NC Communities

Residential Commercial

23

24

30



12/5/2022

13

Wastewater SDFs in NC Communities

Residential Commercial

Genevieve Versteeg, PE

Gary Hartong, PE

Questions

25

26

31



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

 

Meeting Date: December 12, 2022 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Rezoning Request -  Parcels 67224, 68790, and 70655. 

Action Requested: Hold Public Hearing to Consider the Rezoning Request. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, Public Hearing Notice Update, Public 
Hearing Notice, Notification to Adjacent Property Owners, and Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 11/30/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 12/5/2022 ☒ TM: 12/8/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 12/8/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: The Overton Group. 

 

Location: Intersection of Old Tar Road and Vernon White Road. 

 

Parcel Number: 67224, 68790, and 70655. 

 

Site Data: 13.94 Acres. 

 

Current Zoning District: R-15. 

 

Proposed Zoning District: General Business (GB). 

 

❖ Proposed Zoning District: General Business. 

❖ Notification was posted on the site on August 31, 2022. 

❖ The Planning and Zoning Board recommended denial of the rezoning 6-2 on September 19, 2022. 

❖ Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the public Hearing on October 21, 2022. 

❖ Public Hearing Notice published in the Daily Reflector on Wednesday, November 2, 2022 and 

Wednesday, November 9, 2022. 

❖ Per the request of the Applicant, Town Council voted to table the Public Hearing until December 12, 

2022. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council approve the Rezoning Request. 

 

32



33



34



35



Gaskins Land Surveying, P.A. 
PO Box 354, Vanceboro, North Carolina  28586 

Phone:  252-714-0983 

 

August 30, 2022 

 

Bridgers Legal Description 

Parcels: 67224, 68790 & 70655 

 

Commencing at an existing iron rebar located in the western right of way of NCSR 1700-Old Tar 

Road, said point being the southeastern most point of the cemetery lot owned by Ronald Vincent 

(DB 3249 PG 465); thence along the western right of way of NCSR 1700-Old Tar Road with a 

curve having a radius of 361315.14', a chord bearing of S7°40'33"W 228.28', and an arc length 

of 228.28' to an existing rebar; thence along the western right of way of NCSR 1700-Old Tar 

Road S07°14'22"W 633.56' to an existing rebar in the right of way, said point being the 

northwestern corner of the John Radcliff property (DB 4182 PG 407); thence with the Radcliff 

property N82°45'38"W 201.36' to an existing iron rebar; thence S16°03'38"W 283.13' to an 

existing rebar in the Northern right of way of NCSR 1130-Vernon White Road; thence with said 

right of way N73°56'22"W 45.48' to an existing rebar; thence continuing with said right of way 

with a curve having a radius of 936.41', a chord bearing of N58°51'40"W, a chord distance of 

487.20'' to an existing rebar located in the centerline of a canal; thence with the centerline of said 

canal the following courses N21°17'08"E 197.50', N21°17'08"E 72.30', N06°32'08"E 81.18' , 

N21°02'08"E 118.80', N39°22'08"E 314.82', N51°47'08"E 125.06', N51°47'08"E 41.26, 

N20°43'45"E 159.33' to a point; thence leaving said canal S81°34'01"E 15.00' to an existing 

rebar on the canal bank; thence S70°55'37"E 217.75' to an existing rebar in the western line of 

the cemetery lot owned by Ronald Vincent (DB 3249 PG 465); thence S08°25'59"W 14.54' to an 

existing rebar; thence S81°48'03"E 95.00' to the point of beginning, containing a combined 

acreage of 13.90 acres. 
 

36



 
2571 Railroad Street Phone (252)215-2358 

PO Box 1459 Fax (252)756-3109 

Winterville, NC 28590 www.wintervillenc.com 
 

Town Council 
Public Hearing 

Rezoning Request 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, December 12, 
2022 at 7:00 pm (tabled from the November 14, 2022 meeting) in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 
2571 Railroad Street, in order to consider the following request: 
 
The Overton Group has submitted a rezoning application to rezone Parcels 67224, 68790, and 70655 
(13.94 Acres) as shown on the attached map from R-15 to General Business (GB) Zoning District. 
The purpose of the General Business District (GB) is to accommodate those business that serve the 
traveling public, require large amounts of land for display and parking, and are not oriented to the 
pedestrian shopper. 
 
Copies of the Zoning Ordinance and Map are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town 
Tall and are available for public inspection by contacting bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the 
Winterville Planning Department at (252) 756-2221 or at wintervillenc.com. 
 
Citizens are encouraged to attend the hearing. Citizens may also view the hearing on the Winterville 
website at www.wintervillenc.com/videos . If for any reason you have difficulty accessing the Town’s 
video page, please go to the Town’s YouTube channel at: 
www.youtube.com/channel/UChejtVcuiD9O3_zzTrrBj4g . 
 
The public may submit written comments to the Town Clerk’s office, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, 
NC 28590, or via email to don.harvey@wintervillenc.com. Please include your name and address. 
  

37



 

 

38



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Town of Winterville 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, 
November 14, 2022 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, to 
consider the following request: 
 
The Overton Group has submitted a rezoning application to rezone Parcels 67224, 68790, and 
70655 (13.94 Acres) from R-15 to General Business (GB) Zoning District. The purpose of the 
General Business District (GB) is to accommodate those business that serve the traveling 
public, require large amounts of land for display and parking, and are not oriented to the 
pedestrian shopper. 
 
Copies of the Zoning Ordinance and Map are on file at the Planning Department Office in the 
Town Tall and are available for public inspection by contacting bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com 
or the Winterville Planning Department at (252) 756-2221 or at www.wintervillenc.com. 
 
Citizens are encouraged to attend the hearing. Citizens may also view the hearing on the 
Winterville website at www.wintervillenc.com/videos . If for any reason you have difficulty 
accessing the Town’s video page, please go to the Town’s YouTube channel at: 
www.youtube.com/channel/UChejtVcuiD9O3_zzTrrBj4g . 
 
The public may submit written comments to the Town Clerk’s office, 2571 Railroad Street, PO 
Box 1459, Winterville, NC 28590, or via email to don.harvey@wintervillenc.com. Please 
include your name and address. 
  
Notes to Publisher: 
 
Legal Advertisements 
legals@apgenc.com 
(252) 329-9521 
 
Subject: Winterville Public Hearing –Rezoning for Parcels 67224, 68790, 70655. 
 
Please place the above legal advertisement in the Daily Reflector on Wednesday, November 2, 
2022 and Wednesday, November 9, 2022. Should you have any questions please contact me. 
 
Please forward the invoice and Affidavit of Publication to me to assist with payment. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Donald Harvey, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
Town of Winterville 
2571 Railroad Street/PO Box 1459 
Winterville, NC 28590 
(252) 756-2221 ext. 2344 – Phone 
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com 

39

mailto:legals@apgenc.com
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


2571 Railroad Street                Phone (252)215-2358 

PO Box 1459           Fax (252)756-3109 

Winterville, NC 28590            www.wintervillenc.com 
 

Town Council  

Public Hearing 

Rezoning Request 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, November 14, 
2022 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, in order to consider the 
following request: 
 
The Overton Group has submitted a rezoning application to rezone Parcels 67224, 68790, and 70655 
(13.94 Acres) as shown on the attached map from R-15 to General Business (GB) Zoning District.  
The purpose of the General Business District (GB) is to accommodate those business that 
serve the traveling public, require large amounts of land for display and parking, and are not 
oriented to the pedestrian shopper. 
 
Copies of the Zoning Ordinance and Map are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town 
Tall and are available for public inspection by contacting bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the 
Winterville Planning Department at (252) 756-2221 or at wintervillenc.com. 
 
Citizens are encouraged to attend the hearing. Citizens may also view the hearing on the Winterville 
website at www.wintervillenc.com/videos . If for any reason you have difficulty accessing the Town’s 
video page, please go to the Town’s YouTube channel at: 
www.youtube.com/channel/UChejtVcuiD9O3_zzTrrBj4g . 
 
The public may submit written comments to the Town Clerk’s office, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, 
NC 28590, or via email to don.harvey@wintervillenc.com. Please include your name and address. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
    

   

 

40



   

 

 

41



  

 
MICHAEL L BRIDGERS 
WENDY C BRIDGERS 
2023 DOUBLEGATE LN 
GREENVILLE, NC 27834      

 
JOHN RADCLIFF 
LINDA YVONNE ABBOT 
3303 MORTEZ CT 
APEX, NC 27502      

 
TANYA DAVIS COATES 
856 MOHILL PLACE 
PISCATAWAY, NJ 08854 

  

  

 
TERESA ANN PETERSON 
PO BOX 118 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

 
AMY KNIGHT WASHINGTON  
EDWARD EARL WASHINGTON 
4857 OLD TAR ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

 
MUHAMMAD HASANIEH 
SANDRA HASANIEH 
508 TABARD ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590   

  

LINDSEY TOMPKINS 
DANIEL TOMKINS 
507 TABARD ROAD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

JUDY W MCLAWHORN 
4897 REEDY BRANCH ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

WILLIAM K WALKER 
ROASE C WALKER 
550 STILWATER DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

ROBERT C NICHOLSON, III 
KALI NICHOLSON 
PO BOX 329 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

BONNIE B ROGERS 
DANIEL T ROGERS 
540 STILLWATER DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

ELIZABETH BURKHART 
EDWARD BURKART, III 
536 STILLWATER DRIVE  
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

  

  

SHERRI SLADE 
TORICO GRIFFIN 
528 STILLWATER DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

RUKIYAH ANDERSON 
JAMES ANDERSON 
522 STILLWATER DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

WILLIAM VANDIFORD 
LAURA VANDIFORD 
514 STILLWATER DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

WILLIAM HORNER, JUR 
CAROLYN HORNER 
506 STILLWATER DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

CLAUDE BRYANT 
509 CEDAR RIDGE DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

JONHSON PROPERTIES, LLC 

2235 BLACK HORSE LANE 

WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 
  

  

 
RONAL VINCENT 
1728 CIRCLE DRIVE 
GREENVILLE, NC 27858 

     

 
CHRISTELLE MORENO 
632 MILTON DIRVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

       

DIANE JACOBS 
628 MILTON DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

ROBERT SPEIGHT, JR 
ELLEN SPEIGHT 
622 MILTON DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

 
VERONICA WHITE 
608 MILTON DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 
  

     

 
 
CHRISTOPHER MANNING 
596 MILTON DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

    

  

  
WALTER BRYANT, JR 
FAITH BRYANT 
590 MILTON DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

      

  
MATTHEW STUMP 
KATIE STUMP 
580 MILTON DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

      

  
DENNIS PITT 
CLARA PITT 
574 MILTON DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

   

  

  
CONRAD KIRBY 
CAROL KIRBY 
564 MILTON DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 
      

DOUGLAS BOYD 
LEIGH BOYD 
556 MILTON DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

LEE ALLEN BLANKENSHIP 
DEBORAH BLANKENSHIP 
544 MILTON DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  
 42



  

 
 
DEBORAH DAVIS 
538 MILTON 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 
      

 
ANDRE WESTON 
JESSICA WESTON 
530 MILTON DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 
 

     

 
NICOLE GILL 
DAVID GILL 
509 VERNON WHITE ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 
   

  

 
BRADLEY CHAPMAN 
517 VERNON WHTIE ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

 
DENIECE GRAY 
ADRIAN GRAY 
529 VERNON WHITE ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

 
JAMES BATTLE  
DENISE BATTLE 
506 MILTON DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590   

  

 
VIRGINIA LLOYD 
512 VERNON WHITE ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 
      

VICTORIA T HASKINS 
2307 BROCK AVE 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

TALMADGE LOCKE 
PAMELA LOCKE 
2316 BLACKSTONE DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

DVML, LLC 
3100 ROLSTON ROAD 
GREENVILLE, NC 27858 

     

ERIC LEE BRANN 
548 VERNON WHITE ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

ALEX LEE BRANN, JR 
564 VERNON WHITE ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

GREENVILLE SOUTH 
CONGREGATION OF JEHOVAHS 
WITNESSES 
405 HARRELL STREET 
GREENVILLE NC 27858      

 

     

ROY ASBELL 
467 VERNON WHITE RD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

MCCOY ENC, LLC 
3113 CAMILLE DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

MARVIN ARNOLD 
LINDA ARNOLD 
479 VERNON WHITE RD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

JONI YVETTE MILLS 

485 VERNON WHITE RD 

WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 
  

  

ELLITO GRUHN 
493 VERNON WHITE RD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

TERRY LEE MOORE 
501 MILTON DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

 

  

  

 

     

 

     

 

  

  

 

     

 

     

 

  

  

 

     

 

     

 

  
 43



 

 Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT The Overton Group 

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST R-15 to GB 

CONDITIONS n/a 

LOCATION Intersection of Vernon White Road and Old Tar Road 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 67224, 68790, 70655 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on October 21, 2022.  Notification was posted on site on 
August 30, 2022.  50 properties were mailed notification.  
Notification was posted on the Town’s website.    

TRACT SIZE 13.94 acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Cleared / Agricultural 

 

 
 

 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Agricultural / Vacant 

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N AR Lawn Care Business 
(Commercial) 

E R-10 Single Family Residential 

W R-15 Single Family Residential 

S AR/R-12.5 Single Family Residential / 
Church  

 
 

 

 

 

44



ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
R-15 

 
General Business (GB) 

MAX DENSITY 2-3 per acre n/a 

 
TYPICAL USES 

Medium to low-density 
residential single family 
residential. 
 

Commercial in the form of 
retail, business, professional 
and personal services.  

 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS N/A  

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Site Plan, Subdivision Plan required. 
**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district. 

 
 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Old Tar Road– NCDOT Road 
Vernon White Road – NCDOT Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

Old Tar Road – 12,500 
Vernon White Road – 5,600 

TRIP GENERATION TBD 

SIDEWALKS Required. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A 

OTHER N/A 

 
 

45



IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed GB zoning districts would allow land uses that are complimentary to the 
surrounding area.  The Old Tar Widening Project (4-lane, divided road) and the realignment 
of Vernon White Road and Tabard Road (signalized intersection), provides excellent access 
for the traveling public. 
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as a Commercial Overlay character 

area. The requested General Business (GB) zoning district is consistent with this 

character area as defined by the future land use designation. 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Commercial Overlay - General Character:   

• Potential for small-scale commercial that is sensitive to existing residential development 

if good transportation access is possible. 

 

Land Use – Policy 1:  Encourage a balanced tax base while managing 
growth:   

• 1.1:  Utilize the Future land Use Map and character areas when considering lad 

use decisions (i.e. development approvals and rezoning decisions and 

infrastructure improvement priorities. 

• 1.2:  Encourage non-residential growth in the form of retail, restaurants, 

professional offices and industrial development in areas designated as such on 

the Future Land Use Map.   

 
Economic Development – Policy 2:  Improve self-sufficiency and reduce 
retail leakage:   

• 2.1:  Support Winterville’s transformation from a “bedroom community” to a 

“neighboring community” of Greenville.  The Economic Task Force recommended 

that Winterville grow into its own vibrant community with its own commercial and 

employment sectors.  This will help the Town become a self-sufficient community that 

recaptures retail leakage from nearby Greenville. 

• 2.2:  Discourage rezonings to residential zoning districts in high visibility corners 

with good access and parcels within Office & Employment future land use areas.   

• Policy 4:  Respond to recent and planned transportation improvements.  

Capitalize on the opportunities that will arise from the Old Tar Widening Project. 

 

  

 

46



 

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 
 
Staff Analysis 
 
The 13.94 acre property is currently vacant.  The property North of the request is zoned AR 
and has a commercial tree service/lawn care business.  West of the request is zoned R-15 
and is single family residential (separated by a buffered stream feature). South of the request 
is zoned AR and R-12.5 with a church and single family residential (separated by Vernon 
White Road).  East of the property is zoned R-10 and is single family residential (separated by 
Old Tar Road). 
 
The General Business (GB) District rezoning request is consistent with the intent and 
purpose of the Zoning Ordinance, Future Land Use Plan and is generally compatible with the 
future development and trends in the surrounding area. The Old Tar Widening Project and 
realignment of Vernon White Road with Tabard Road makes this a desirable location for a 
commercial use.  The stream feature between the subject property and the residential 
subdivision to the west will provide an added buffer (natural woody vegetation 50’ buffer).   
 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 

Planning and Zoning Board recommended denial of the request 6-2 on September 

19, 2022. 

 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request for the 13.94 acres from R-15 

to General Business (GB). 

47



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: December 12, 2022 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject:  Council Meeting Minutes. 

Action Requested: Approval of Minutes. 

Attachment: Draft Minutes of the Council meetings listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 12/5/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 12/5/2022 ☒ TM: 12/8/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 12/8/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

➢ November 14, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council approve the Minutes. 

 

48



 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2022 – 7:00 PM 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Richard E. Hines presiding. The following were present: 

 
Richard E. Hines, Mayor 

Mark C. Smith, Mayor Pro Tem 
Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Paul A. Rice, Councilman 

Veronica W. Roberson, Councilwoman 
Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Cliff McGuffin, Public Works Director 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Jessica Manning, Finance Director 

Bryan Jones, Planning Director 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Hines called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Pastor Winton Felton gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hines led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Hines welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Mayor Hines noted an amendment to the Agenda at the Request of the applicant’s representative to 
table the Public Hearing and move to the Monday, December 12, 2022, Meeting. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Smith to approve the 
amended agenda. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
RECOGNITION OF NEW EMPLOYEES: 
 
Sidney Eubanks, School Resource Officer, Police Department was introduced by Police Chief Willhite. 
 
  

49



PRESENTATION(S): 
 
Town Clerk Harvey read the Resolution of the North Carolina League of Municipalities honoring 
Douglas A. Jackson. 

 
 
  

50



PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
Rezoning Request – Parcels 67224, 68790, 70655. (At the Request of the Applicant’s Representative 
the Item is Tabled and Moved to the Monday, December 12, 2022 at 7:00 pm Meeting.) 
 
Councilman Moore asked if there was any reason for the tabling. Planning Director Jones read the 
following excerpt from the email sent to him by The Overton Group: Throughout this process we have 
engaged in meaningful conversations with the Town of Winterville and the neighbors directly adjacent 
to the property. We feel these conversations have been very productive and beneficial as we work to 
find mutually beneficial solutions for the neighbors as well as the Town of Winterville. At this time, we 
would like to continue our discussions with the neighbors as we work through all possible outcomes. 
We are asking that the rezoning request for these parcels be tabled until December 12th. This will allow 
us to continue engaging in meaningful conversations with the neighboring residents to ensure we can 
deliver mutually beneficial outcomes. Councilman Moore said is this fair to residents? Councilwoman 
Roberson said she is glad to see they are trying to work things out. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Rice to table the public 
hearing on the Rezoning Request of Parcels 67224, 68790, 70655 at the request of the 
Applicant’s Representative to the Monday, December 12, 2022 Meeting. 
 
Councilman Moore said I still thinks it not fair. Councilman Moye said he had received a call that was 
highly upset. 
 
Motion carried 4-1. Councilman Moore opposed. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes: 
➢ October 10, 2022, Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
consent agenda. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
1. Vision Zero Resolution: Town Clerk Harvey read Resolution 22-R-111. 
 
Steven Hardy-Braz, Ellen Walston, and Dave Manning representing the Vision Zero organization made 
comments and Council for consideration of the resolution. Councilman Moore commented on the need 
at intersections. 

51



 
 

52



Mayor Hines asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is Council’s 
pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Smith to approve 
Resolution 22-R-111 establishing a Vision Zero Policy, Task Force, and Action Plan in 
Winterville, a Vision Zero Town. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 

1. Sunshine Lane – Final Plat: Planning Director Jones gave the following presentation: 
 

 
 

 
 

53



 
 

 
 

 

54



 
 

 
 

 

55



 
 

 
 
Mayor Hines asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the 
Sunshine Lane Final Plat. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
None 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: 
 

• Councilman Moore asked for discussion on the traffic around Town Hall and Church Street 
at the December meeting. 

• Councilman Moye asked about the downtown lighting situation. 

• Councilwoman Roberson asked about the drainage project. Assistant Town Manager 
Bowers noted that the project is looking to advance, but not by next summer, we are 
moving forward with initial phases. 

56



 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Town Clerk Harvey gave the following announcements: 
 
➢ Human Relations Board Meeting: Wednesday, November 16, 2022 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Executive 

Conference Room. 
➢ 125th Anniversary Community Day: Saturday, November 19, 2022, 10:00 am – 2:00 pm @ Downtown 

area around Town Hall. 
➢ Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, November 21, 2022 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly 

Room. 
➢ Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, November 22, 2022 @ 6:30 pm – Operation Center. 
➢ Thanksgiving Holidays: Thursday, November 24, 2022, and Friday, November 25, 2022 – Town 

Offices Closed. 
➢ Town Christmas Activities: Saturday, December 10, 2022: Parade @ 2:00 pm; Market 2:00 pm – 6:00 

pm; and Tree Lighting @ 5:00 pm. 
➢ Regular Town Council Meeting: Monday, December 12, 2022 @ 7:00 pm. 
 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN 
MANAGER: 
 
Attorney Lassiter: Reminded everyone about the closed session. 
 
Councilman Moore: Thanked all for the Veterans Ceremony. Congratulations to Mayor Pro Tem Smith 
on election to the Pitt County Board of Commissioner. Happy Thanksgiving. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson: Congratulations to Mayor Pro Tem Smith, the Human Relations Board is 
meeting and progressing, Library proposing a permanent seat on their board for the Town, Mount 
Shiloh will have turkey dinners this Saturday. 
 
Councilman Rice: Congratulations to our Veterans and to Mayor Pro Tem Smith. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith: Thanks to all the voters 
 
Councilman Moye: Thanks for the Hillcrest Traffic Garden, Congratulations to Mayor Pro Tem Smith, 
Happy Thanksgiving to everyone. 
 
Manager Parker: Congratulations to Mayor Pro Tem Smith, Happy Thanksgiving to all. 
 
Mayor Hines: Congratulations to Mayor Pro Tem Smith, Thanks to the Hillcrest Traffic Garden, Thanks 
to our Veterans. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to go into Closed 
Session (NCGS § 143-318.11. (a) (5) To establish, or to instruct the public body's staff or 
negotiating agents concerning the position to be taken by or on behalf of the public body in 
negotiating (i) the price and other material terms of a contract or proposed contract for the 
acquisition of real property by purchase, option, exchange, or lease; or (ii) the amount of 
compensation and other material terms of an employment contract or proposed employment 
contract (Potential Acquisition of Real Property). Motion carried unanimously, 5-0 at 7:39 PM. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 
  

57



 
ADJOURN: 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Moore to adjourn the 
meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 8:09 pm. 
 

Adopted this the 12th day of December 2022. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

58



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: December 12, 2022 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject:  2023 Council Meeting and Budget Calendars. 

Action Requested: Approval of Calendars. 

Attachment: Draft Calendars Listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 12/5/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 12/5/2022 ☒ TM: 12/8/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 12/8/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following 2023 Calendars: 

➢ Council Meeting Calendar; 

➢ Budget Calendar. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council approve the Calendars. 

 

59



TOWN COUNCIL 
2023 MEETING CALENDAR DRAFT 

 

 

DATE DESCRIPTION TIME LOCATION 

Monday, January 9, 2023 
 

Regular Council Meeting 7:00 pm THAR 

Monday, February 13, 2023 
 

Regular Council Meeting 7:00 pm THAR 

Monday, March 13, 2023 
 

Regular Council Meeting 7:00 pm THAR 

Monday, April 10, 2023 
 

Regular Council Meeting 7:00 pm THAR 

Monday, May 8, 2023 
 

Regular Council Meeting 7:00 pm THAR 

Monday, June 12, 2023 
 

Regular Council Meeting 7:00 pm THAR 

Monday, July 10, 2023 
 

NO MEETING NA NA 

Monday, August 14, 2023 
 

Regular Council Meeting 7:00 pm THAR 

Monday, September 11, 2023 
 

Regular Council Meeting 7:00 pm THAR 

Monday, October 9, 2023 
 

Regular Council Meeting 7:00 pm THAR 

Monday, November 13, 2023 
 

Regular Council Meeting 7:00 pm THAR 

Monday, December 11, 2023 
 

Regular Council Meeting 7:00 pm THAR 

 

THAR: Town Hall Assembly Room 

2571 Railroad Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 

60



TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 
FY 2023-2024 DRAFT 
BUDGET CALENDAR 

 

 

 

DATE DESCRIPTION TIME LOCATION 

Monday, January 23, 2023 Town Council Vision Setting 
Meeting 

6:00 pm THAR 

Monday, February 20, 2023 Distribution of Budget Worksheets 
to Management Team 

NA TMGR OFFICE 

Friday, March 24, 2023 Management Team 
Recommendations Due 

NA TMGR OFFICE 

Monday, April 24, 2023 Town Council & Manager Progress 
Meeting 

6:00 pm THECR 

May 8-12, 2023 Manager Review with Management 
Team  

N/A TMGR OFFICE 

Monday, May 22, 2023 Hand delivery of the 
Recommended Budget 

N/A NA 

Tuesday, May 23, 2023 Town Council Budget Work 
Sessions 

6:00 pm THAR 

Thursday, May 25, 2023 Town Council Budget Work 
Sessions 

6:00 pm THAR 

Monday, June 5, 2023 Public Hearing 7:00 pm THAR 

Monday, June 12, 2023 Adoption of the FY 2023-2023 
Budget Ordinance 

7:00 pm THAR 

Friday, July 1, 2023 Fiscal Year Begins NA NA 
 

THAR: 
Town Hall Assembly Room 
2571 Railroad Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 

THECR: 
Executive Conference Room 
2571 Railroad Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 

TMGR Office 
Town Manager’s Office 
2571 Railroad Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 

DEPOT: 
Winterville Train Depot 
Railroad Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 

61



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: December 12, 2022 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Budget Amendment 2022-2023-4. 

Action Requested: Approval of the Budget Amendment. 

Attachment: Budget Amendment 2022-2023-4 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager Date: 12/6/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 12/6/2022 ☒ TM: 12/8/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 12/8/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

This is the fourth budget amendment for the 2022-2023 Fiscal Year. 

The first item addresses the need for additional funds to cover contracted services for mowing town property. 

This was added due to the retirement of a public works employee. The additional funds needed is $20,000. 

The second item addresses the Ange Street sidewalk project. Council voted to take the savings from vacant 

positions last fiscal year and fund the project at AG Cox. The amount is $135,000. 

The third amendment addresses the need to cover the cost of the St. Rest property in the amount of 

$150,000. 

The fourth item covers the increased cost of Sanitation for fuel surcharges and CPI increase as well as 

customer growth. This amendment is for $60,000. 

The fifth item addresses that anticipated increase in Powell Bill Revenue for the year, in the amount of 

$31,500 

The sixth item addresses the increased cost of Natural Gas and the effect it is having on Power Purchase for 

resale line item. At the mid-year mark, we are looking at a $1,000,000 shortfall. 

The seventh item covers the cost of moving a fire hydrant at the new Eleven and Main subdivision. The cost 

to relocate the hydrant was $8,300. 

The last item addresses the need for correct a PO that was supposed to be carried over to the current fiscal 

year. Instead it was accidently closed. The amount of the PO was $11,500. 

Budgetary Impact: The total budget amendment will receive increase budget in the amount of $1,416,300. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council approve the budget amendment. 

 

62



LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Fund Account Increase Decrease

Fund Balance 10 3831 349,800.00$       

FEMA Grant 10 3425 15,200.00$         

Powell Bill Distribution 16 3440 31,500.00$         

Fund Balance 60 3831 1,000,000.00$    

Fund Balance 61 3831 8,300.00$           

Fund Balance 62 3831 11,500.00$         

Total 1,416,300.00$    -$             

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Account Department Fund Increase Decrease

Contracted Services 10426002 4233 General 20,000.00$         

Capital Outlay 10451002 7150 Public Works Other General 135,000.00$       

Capital Outlay 1042600 7150 Public Buildings Gereral 150,000.00$       

Sanitation 10411000 4233 General 60,000.00$         

Paving and Resurfacing 16451000 4270 Powell Bill Fund 31,500.00$         

Purchase for Resale 60711000 4302 Electric 1,000,000.00$    

Capital Outlay 61721000 7150 Water Fund 8,300.00$           

Supplies and Materials 62732020 4230 Sewer 11,500.00$         

Total 1,416,300.00$    -$             

Mayor

Town Clerk

BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 2022-2023-4

SECTION 1. Revenues are to be changed as follows:

SECTION 2. Appropriations are to be changed as follows:

Adopted the 12th day of December 2022.

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Winterville, that the following amendment be made to the 

annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023:

63



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: December 12, 2022 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Southbrook PUD – Rezoning Request. 

Action Requested: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Rezoning Request on January 9, 2023. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, PUD Document, Notification to 
Adjacent Property Owners, Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 11/30/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 12/5/2022 ☒ TM: 12/8/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 12/8/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: The Coley Group c/o Scott Moore. 

 

Location: Church Street Ext. and Laurie Ellis Road. 

 

Parcel Numbers:15006, 11636, 11638, 82094 and 82096. 

 

Site Data: 245.43 acres. 

 

Current Zoning District: AR. 

 

Proposed Zoning District: R-6 PUD, MR PUD. 

 

➢ Proposed Zoning Districts: Conditional District PUD – R-6 PUD, MR PUD. 

➢ Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning request on November 2, 2022. 

➢ Notification was posted on the site on October 28, 2022. 

➢ Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended approval on November 21, 2022. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends scheduling the Public Hearing for January 9, 2023. 

 

64



65



66



67



TMTLA ASSOCIATES
5011 SOUTHPARK DRIVE, STE. 200 - DURHAM, NC 27713

p: (919) 484-8880   e: info@tmtla.com

SC
A

LE
:

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y:

D
A

TE
:

O
F

SH
EE

T

PR
O

JE
C

T 
#

22
12

5

1"
=2

00
'

PRELIMINARY SKETCH PLAN

CHAPEL HILL FOUNDATION-WINTERVILLE
CHURCH STREET EXTENSION AND LAURIE ELLIS ROAD, WINTERVILLE NC

TM
T

08
/3

1/
22

PR
EL

IM
IN

A
RY

 A
N

D
 C

O
N

C
EP

TU
A

L 
D

ES
IG

N
A

ll p
re

lim
in

ar
y 

an
d

 c
on

ce
pt

ua
l d

es
ig

n 
sk

et
ch

es
 a

re
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

fie
ld

 v
er

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 it

em
s

in
cl

ud
in

g 
bu

t n
ot

 lim
ite

d
 to

: t
op

og
ra

ph
ic

 a
nd

 so
il c

on
d

iti
on

s, 
ex

ist
in

g 
ut

ilit
ie

s, 
re

gu
la

te
d

st
re

am
 b

uf
fe

rs
, w

et
la

nd
s a

nd
 fl

oo
d

pl
ai

n 
d

el
in

ea
tio

ns
. T

he
se

 it
em

s a
re

 v
er

ifi
ed

 d
ur

in
g

fu
tu

re
 d

es
ig

n 
d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ha
se

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
.

S

W

N

E

SI
TE

 D
AT

A:
AD

D
R

ES
S:

 
M

ul
tip

le
 (s

ee
 c

ha
rt 

be
lo

w
)

PI
N

:
M

ul
tip

le
 (s

ee
 c

ha
rt 

be
lo

w
)

AC
R

ES
:

To
ta

l: 
24

5.
43

 A
C

. (
10

,6
90

,9
31

 S
F)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

ZO
N

IN
G

:
AR

 &
 R

R
(A

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l a

nd
 R

ur
al

 R
es

id
en

tia
l)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

LA
N

D
 U

SE
:

VA
C

AN
T

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 L

AN
D

 U
SE

: 
Si

ng
le

 F
am

ily
 D

et
ac

he
d 

& 
Si

ng
le

 F
am

ily
 A

tta
ch

ed
 H

om
es

W
AT

ER
SH

ED
:

N
eu

se
 R

iv
er

 B
uf

fe
r A

re
a

W
ET

LA
N

D
:

1,
43

0,
57

8 
SF

: 3
2.

8 
AC

 (1
3.

4%
)

R
EC

R
EA

TI
O

N
:

21
2,

08
6 

SF
; 4

.8
7 

AC
 (2

%
)

O
TH

ER
  O

PS
:

1,
90

6,
18

5 
SF

; 4
3.

76
 A

C
 (1

7.
8%

)

TO
TA

L 
O

PE
N

 S
PA

C
E:

3,
54

7,
09

0 
SF

; 8
1.

43
 A

C
 (3

3.
2%

)

TO
TA

L 
O

PE
N

 S
PA

C
E

(O
ut

si
de

 o
f W

et
la

nd
s)

:
2,

11
8,

32
2 

SF
; 4

8.
63

 A
C

 (1
9.

8%
)

68

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. C-126

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E,

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
741

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
100



CHAPEL HILL FOUNDATION REAL EST ATE HOLDINGS, INC. 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

TAX PARCEL #15006: 

The following property acquired by A. Donald Stallings by Deed from Roy C. Mills and 
wife dated May 5, 2005, recorded in Book 1906, Page 113, Pitt County Registry: 

PARCEL 1: 

BEING all of the lands (EXCEPTING Tract "A" containing 25.2 acres and Tract "B" 
containing 2.25 acres and Tract "C" containing 2.06 acres and Tract "D" containing 7.2 acres) as 
shown and described on that certain "MAP FOR RECORD FOUNTAIN W. CARROLL," dated 
March 23, 1966, and prepared by R. J. Strickland, R.S., which said map is recorded in Map Book 
15 at page 21, Pitt County Registry, reference to which is hereby made for a more accurate 
description. 

The lands herein described and conveyed contain 138.74 acres after excepting Tracts 
"A", "B", "C" and "D" as hereinabove excepted and specified. Being the identical property 
conveyed by Mary Frances Albritton Carroll (widow) to Roy Mills and wife, Jean Mills by deed 
dated January 17, 1968, recorded in Book M37, Page 440, Pitt County Registry. 

PARCEL 2: 

First Tract. That certain tract or parcel of land situate, lying and being in Winterville Township, 
Pitt County, North Carolina, and located 408 feet eastwardly from the "First Tract" described in 
the deed from R. M. Abbott et ux to Lucy Abbott Hunsucker, dated March 21, 1962, and 
recorded in Book 0-33 at page 355 of the Pitt County Registry, and connected with said "First 
Tract" herein referred to by a path as shown on the map recorded in Map Book 10 at page 137 in 
the Office of the Register of Deeds of Pitt County, to which map reference is hereby made, and 
beginning at a point in the center of the path 408 eastwardly, when measured along the center of 
the path, from the "First Tract" herein referred to, and running thence North 26 deg. 15 min. 
East, 100 feet; thence North 52 deg. East, 134 feet; thence S. 36 deg. East, 181 feet; thence S. 9 
deg. 45 min. West, 300 feet; thence North 84 deg. 15 min. West, 218 feet; thence North 19 deg. 
30 min. West, 14 7 feet; thence North 29 deg. 15 min. East, 121 feet to the point of the beginning, 
and containing 2.25 acres, more or less, and being the "Second Tract" described in the deed 
recorded in Book 0-33 at page 355 of said Registry and hereinabove referred to. 

4 

Book: 3448 Page: 378 Page 4 of 7 

69



Second Tract. That certain tract or parcel of land situate, lying and being in Winterville 
Township, Pitt County, North Carolina, bounded on the north, east and south by the lands of Roy 
Mills, and on the west by a ditch and the lands of Lucy Abbott Hunsucker on the west side of 
said ditch, and beginning at the northeast corner of the 25.2-acre tract of land described as "First 
Tract" in the deed from R. M. Abbott et al, to Lucy Abbott Hunsucker, recorded in Book 0-33 at 
page 355 of the Pitt County Registry, in Roy Mills' line, and running thence South 11 deg. West, 
with Roy Mills' line, 312 feet; thence North 86 deg. 15 min. West, 112 feet, more or less, to the 
center line of a ditch; thence northwardly, with the center line of said ditch, 315 feet, more or 
less, to the line of Roy Mills; thence with his line, South 79 deg. 30 min. East, 90 feet, more or 
less, to the point of beginning and containing * of an acre, more or less, and being the 
easternmost portion of the 25.2 acre tract of land described in the deed recorded in Book 0-33 at 
page 355 of the Pitt County Registry. 

The above 2 parcels being the identical property conveyed by deed from Wayland L. Hunsucker 
and wife, Lucy Abbott Hunsucker, to Roy Mills and wife, Jean Mills, dated January 4, 1973, 
recorded in Book L4 l, Page 179, Pitt County Registry. 

PARCEL 3: 

Tract 1: 

Containing 23.99 acres, more or less and being Tract No. 1 on map entitled Property of A. D. 
McLawhorn, Jr. and W. L. Hunsucker dated January 30, 1970 and recorded in Map Book 20, 
Page 2, Pitt County Registry. 

Tract 2: 

Containing 23.99 acres, more or less, and being Tract No. 2 on map entitled Property of A. D. 
McLawhorn, Jr. and W. L. Hunsucker dated January 30, 1970 and recorded in Map Book 20, 
Page 2, Pitt County Registry. 

Being the identical property conveyed by deed from Martin Taylor McLawhorn and Katie Marie 
Farkus to Roy C. Mills and wife, Jean I. Mills dated September 14, 2002, recorded in Book 
1364, Page 644, Pitt County Registry. 

TAX PARCELS (#11636 and #11638): 

The following property acquired by A. Donald Stallings by Deed from Wayland A. 
Hunsucker et al dated January 20, 2006, recorded in Book 2056, Page 377, Pitt County Registry 
and by Quitclaim Deed from Elizabeth Abbott Bridgers et al dated April 30, 2010, recorded at 
Book 2769, Page 148, Pitt County Registry: 

Lying and being in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and more 

5 

Book: 3448 Page: 378 Page 5 of 7 

70



particularly described as follows: 

Tax Parcel #11636; Tract 1: Being all of Tract I consisting of 19 .80 I acres of 
land as the same appears on that map entitled "Survey for A. Donald Stallings" 
dated September 8, 2005, revised December 29, 2005, prepared by Baldwin and 
Associates and recorded in Map Book 64, Page 185, of the Pitt County Public 
Registry. 

Tax Parcel #11638; Tract 2: Being all of Tract 2 consisting of 7.513 acres of 
land as the same appears on that map entitled "Survey for A. Donald Stallings" 
dated September 8, 2005, revised December 29, 2005, prepared by Baldwin and 
Associates and recorded in Map Book 64, Page 185, of the Pitt County Public 
Registry. 

TAX PARCEL #82094: 

The following property acquired by A. Donald Stallings by Deed from Margaret M. 
Nemtuda et al dated March 14, 2014, recorded in Book 3219, Page 288, Pitt County Registry and 
by Quitclaim Deed and Release from Wayland A. Hunsucker et al dated May 6, 2014, recorded 
at Book 3219, Page 314, Pitt County Registry: 

Lying and being in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and more 
particularly described as follows: 

Being all of Tract 1 consisting of 9.12 acres of land as the same appears on that 
map entitled "Survey for A. Donald Stallings" dated January 9, 2014, prepared by 
Bjerkeset Land Surveying and recorded in Map Book 77, Page 97, of the Pitt 
County Public Registry. 

TAX PARCEL #82096: 

The following property acquired by A. Donald Stallings by Deed from Wayland A. 
Hunsucker et al dated April 1, 2014, recorded in Book 3219, Page 295, Pitt County Registry: 

Lying and being in WintervilJe Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and more 
particularly described as follows: 

Being all of Tract 2 consisting of 20.00 acres of land as the same appears on that 
map entitled "Survey for A. Donald Stallings" dated January 9, 2014, prepared by 

6 

Book: 3448 Page: 378 Page 6 of 7 

71



Bjerkeset Land Surveying and recorded in Map Book 77, Page 97, of the Pitt 
County Public Registry. 

TOGETHER WITH, without warranty, all right, title and interest of Grantor in and to the 
parcels described as Tracts 1, 2 and 3 on that map entitled "Survey for A. Donald Stallings" 
dated January 9, 2014, prepared by Bjerkeset Land Surveying and recorded in Map Book 77, 
Page 97, of the Pitt County Public Registry. 

7 

Book: 3448 Page: 378 Page 7 of 7 

72



 
 

Town of Winterville 

Plan Unit Development 

For 

Southbrook 

Applicant: 

 

Southbrooknc, LLC 

 

4350 Lassiter at North Hills Ave, Ste 256  

 

Raleigh, NC 27609 

 

 
October 20, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

73



Project Development Team: 
 

Project Manager – Southbrooknc, LLC 

4350 Lassiter at North Hills Ave, Ste 256 Raleigh, NC 27609 

Contact: Scott Moore 

scott@thecoleygroup.com 

74

mailto:scott@thecoleygroup.com


1. Definitions and Construction Terms 

 

Conceptual Plan.  The Conceptual Plan is a plan that generally identifies the land use 
patterns, conceptual design, and density for the development of the Southbrook Property 
and is attached as Appendix 1.  The Conceptual Plan serves as the zoning map for the 
development, is a condition of this planned density residential rezoning application, and, along 
with this document, serves to form the Development Plan for the proposed development.   

Developer.  The Developer of this project is Southbrooknc, LLC and/or assigns. 
 
Development Plan.  This rezoning application with the Conceptual Plan constitutes 
the Development Plan.  

 

Home Owners Association (HOA).  The HOA is a non-profit corporation for the purposes, 
among other things, of owning and managing the privately owned common areas and 
providing governance of the development as a homeowner’s association.   

Open Space.  “Open space” refers to areas of the development that allow for light, air, 
wildlife habitat, stormwater control, and scenic and recreation use.  Also included are areas 
designed to enhance the privacy or general appearance of the development.  Open space 
shall be owned and maintained by the HOA.      
 

Planned Unit Development (PUD).  This zoning designation is established to allow for 
design flexibility of development and is intended to encourage efficient use of the land and 
public services and to promote high quality design that will provide a variety of dwelling types 
as well as support services and open space for the residents of the development.  These 
regulations are intended to permit integration with adjacent residential uses and to promote 
compatibility with existing and emerging patterns of development.   
 

Town.  “Town” refers to the Town of Winterville.  
 
Zoning Ordinance.  The Zoning Ordinance for the Town of Winterville.  Any term not defined 
in this document will be as defined in the Zoning Ordinance.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

75



2.  Development Plan 

 
The plan will meet the Town’s Zoning Ordinance (latest edition) and all standards and policies 
(latest edition) except as noted otherwise.  
 
The maximum number of units proposed is 612 residential homes (with a maximum of 154 
Single Family Attached Homes) on the 245-acre subject property. The Conceptual Subdivision 
Layout shows the general layout of the proposed development with anticipated use areas and 
how they mingle throughout the development, connected by open spaces and sidewalks along 
public roads. The Development Plan also shows the general area of Stormwater Control 
Devices and Recreational Areas. As the plan is further developed, the actual locations of the 
proposed stormwater devices, residential product types and locations may vary to conform to 
the Construction Plans. 
 
The proposed rezoning request is beneficial to the Town because it provides a greater tax 
base. By concentrating more homes on a smaller footprint, we are maximizing the protection 
of trees and environmentally sensitive areas which is useful to the future residents by 
concentrating excess open space, that would normally be included in each lot, into larger 
preservation areas within the subdivision. This gives the new home buyer a smaller lot with 
less maintenance and also provides a larger area for recreation for all to enjoy. This also 
results in less long-term infrastructure maintenance for the Town for the same tax base 
revenue. 
  
Assuming the Town Council finds this rezoning application favorable, the Construction 
Drawings will provide a much higher level of technical data and detail appropriate for review 
by the Town, NCDOT, and other agencies having jurisdiction. 
 
The guidelines and zoning regulations for the development and the agreed upon conditions 
are included in the Development Plan.  To account for both technological innovations and 
unforeseen marketplace changes, this Development Plan is intended to incorporate flexibility 
concerning design and development.  
 
Should the Developer want to make changes to the Development Plan, the Planning Director 
can approve specific minor revisions or changes that represent less intensive uses. An 
example of one such modification is changing the type of residential use that results in a 
decrease in density. The approval of the Planning Director is an administrative approval only 
and all other changes to this Development Plan will constitute a rezoning and require City 
Council approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

76



3.  Compliance with Town of Winterville’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
 
The site referenced in this Development Plan is located on both the south side of Laurie Ellis 
Road and east of Church Street in Winterville. The proposed property contains approximately 
245 acres and includes the areas associated with the following Parcel Identification Numbers: 
15006, 11636,11638, 82096, 82094. 
 
The site falls under the Town of Winterville’s jurisdiction for planning and land use control. 
According to Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan from 2019, the site is shown as medium 
to high on the Residential Land Use Suitability Map as part of the community assessment. 
Our proposal shall meet the guidelines of the Healthy Neighborhoods and Environment 
section by “Developing in a way that alleviates impacts to the natural environment including, 
flood sensitive areas, trees and valuable natural resources”.  We are also proposing to adhere 
to the “Connectivity and Mobility section by creating safe connections between 
neighborhoods, destinations and services.  We will utilize existing public street connections 
with adjacent communities and also provide stub connections to adjacent lands for future 
connectivity.  Our plan shall adhere to the Future Land Use Map as we will provide a 
“Suburban Residential” community with 2.5 units per acre with smaller lot sizes that will meet 
standards for open space and amenities.   
 
4.  Common Areas 
 

Common Areas may include, but are not limited to, open spaces and shared amenities like 
butterfly gardens, dog parks, playgrounds, pool, structures, walking trails, etc. Every lot owner 
will have the right of ingress and egress, use, and enjoyment in and to the Common Areas, 
subject to the rules and regulations of the HOA, which rights are appurtenant to and pass 
with title to every lot. 
 

5.  Residential Restrictions 
 
The agents and employees of the Developer and the HOA will have the right to enter onto any 
lots in the development to control certain actions or activities on such lots. These actions 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
A. On and off-street parking on common areas and lots, 
B. Erection of signage, 
C. Solicitation by property owners and non-property owners, 
D. Access by non-property owners, 
E. Construction or placement of temporary structures, 
F. Construction of accessory buildings, 
G. Maintenance of lots (both pre- and post-construction), and 
H. Erection of decorative poles for street or non-regulatory signs within public rights of way if 

Town approval is granted for the same. These are the responsibility of the HOA to install, 
repair, and replace at no cost to the Town. 

 
 
 

77



More specific guidelines concerning these actions/activities may be adopted by the Developer 
and/or the HOA. Subsequently, the Developer and/or the HOA will have the right to enforce 
these actions/activities in accordance with Town rules, regulations, and ordinances. 
 

6.  Dimensional Standards 
 
For each subdivided lot, the dimensions of the lot, yard, and setback will be determined by the 
Developer as stated in Article VII. Table of Area, Yard, Height Requirements; Section 7.1 
Dimensional Requirements as shown in Appendix 2. 
 
7.  Regulation of Open Space 

 

The regulation of Open Space within the development will be done by the Developer and 
the HOA. As such, the Developer and/or the HOA may implement policies regarding 
towing, parking, access, signage, and trespassing within the development. 
 

8.  Driveways/Roadway Access and Sidewalks  
 

Concrete will be used to surface all residential driveways.  Utility drives, maintenance areas, 
drives to temporary structures, access drives to public utility services, and other similar drives 
can use alternative surface options as approved by the Town’s Public Works and Fire 
departments. Sidewalks in the development will be installed at as per the approved street 
cross sections generally 5’ wide and on one side of the street with the exception of cul-de-
sacs. 
  
9.  Building & Aesthetics for Single Family Detached Homes 
 
Town ordinances will be met during construction of the development. The HOA will retain 
authority over the aesthetic aspects of construction such as architectural style elements, 
appearance, and color through its architectural control mechanisms. All single-family homes 
will have the following: 
 
1. All homes will have a minimum of 1800 heated square feet. 
2. Dimensional architectural roof shingle. 
3. 6” min. roof overhang on all sides. 
4. All homes will include a 2-car garage. 
5. The same elevation is not allowed to be built (1) side by side, (2) across the street, or (3) 

diagonally from one another.      
6. Garage doors will be decorative and/or contain windows. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

78



10.  Building & Aesthetics for Single Family Attached Homes 
 
The HOA will retain authority over the aesthetic aspects of construction such as architectural 
style elements, appearance, and color through its architectural control mechanisms. All single 
family attached homes will have the following: 
 

1. All homes will have a minimum of 1600 heated square feet. 
2. Dimensional architectural roof shingle. 
3. 8” min. roof overhang on all sides. 

 
 11.  Signs (Non-Regulatory) 

Entrance signage must be on a parcel that is owned by the HOA or within a signage 
easement on an owner’s property.   

The Developer and the HOA will control all applications, permitting, erection and maintenance 
of all non-regulatory signs within the development.  The Town shall permit and inspect all 
signs that relate to all local, state, and federal building codes.   

 
For all signs (including those that are temporary in nature) erected in public rights-of-way or 
in view of publicly maintained access, the Developer and the HOA will abide by all sign 
regulations and limitations as set in the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
12. District Regulations 

 
The Developer and the HOA will encourage efficient use of the land and public services and 
promote high quality design that provides a variety of dwelling types along with adequate 
support services and open space for the residents of the development.  The district 
regulations are intended to allow for innovative development that is integrated with 
proposed adjacent uses and compatible with existing patterns of development.   
 

13. Developer and HOA Requirements 

The Developer and the HOA will meet the following requirements:   
 

A. The Developer and the HOA agree to be responsible for the maintenance and perpetual 
existence of common areas.   

B. When individual lots that are not a part of an approved and platted subdivision are to be 
sold, a new subdivision construction and final plat shall be submitted to and approved by 
the Town and recorded in Pitt County Register of Deeds prior to the sale of lots and 
granting of any building permit.   

C. The Developer or the HOA must authorize the subdivision or recombination of property 
prior to the required approval by Town staff.   

D. No building permit for any structure within the development shall be issued until all 
required improvements are completed or bonded in accordance with the approved 
construction plans and conditionally accepted by the Public Works Department.     

E. The maximum allowable density shall not exceed 2.5 units per gross acre based on the 

79



total acres in the development.   
F. Land additions to the development may be made in increments of any size and will be 

subject to this Development Plan.   
G. A variety of dwelling unit styles will be proposed for the development and support uses 

with adherence to the minimum residential lot areas per Article VII. Table of Area, Yard, 
Height Requirements; Section 7.1 Dimensional Requirements as shown in Appendix 2. 

H. Setback from public rights-of-way: Any building that is erected, reconstructed, or moved 
shall be setback a minimum of 20 feet (required by code) from the right-of-way line.    

I. Height Requirements.  Maximum building height shall not exceed the heights as stated on 
the Article VII. Table of Area, Yard, Height Requirements; Section 7.1 Dimensional 
Requirements. 

J. Open Space Requirement. The proposed overall open space for the project will be no less 
than 20% of the total project area. The open space will be controlled by the HOA and will 
be generally located as shown on the Conceptual Subdivision Layout. Within the open 
space, there will be play areas, stormwater control devices, wooded areas, and grass.   

 

14. Rights-of-Way Width, Street Design, and Improvements Requirements 

Streets shall be designed in accordance with Section 4 of the Town’s Standards Specifications 
and Details with the following exception: Typical Street cross sections shall follow the detail 
shown in Appendix 3. 

The Town may allow the construction of private streets and/or parking areas within future 
phases of the community as appropriate for the type of use, structure and development 
created.  The Developer shall designate any such private streets and/or parking areas as 
Common Open Space to be owned and maintained by the HOA, with full easement rights of 
access, ingress and egress, thus granted to all owners of lots within the development.   
Roadway improvements (turn lanes) on Laurie Ellis Road or Church Street may be required 
in conjunction with subdivision street access and would be the responsibility of the Developer. 
 

15. Subdivision Improvements 
 
The Developer will meet the following requirements:   
 

A. Curbs and Gutters. Concrete curbs and gutters shall be installed on all public streets within 
the development to meet all requirements of the Town of Winterville.  

B. Electric Utility Lines.   All public electric utility lines will be installed in accordance with the 
Town’s policy for electric service. Electric lines will be installed underground in easements 
or rights-of-way outside of curb lines where practical.   

 

C. Natural Gas Utilities.  All public natural gas utility lines within the development will be 
installed in accordance with the Town’s policy for Natural Gas Service. Natural gas service 
lines shall be installed underground in easements or rights-of-way outside of curb lines 
where practical.     

D. Special Exceptions for Design Waivers.    If at any time before or during the 
construction of the required improvements, it is demonstrated to the satisfaction of 
the Public Works Department that unforeseen conditions make it necessary to modify 

80



the location or design of such required improvements as were approved in the 
Development Plan, the Public Works Department may authorize such modifications, 
provided these modifications are within the spirit and intent of the Town Council 
approval and do not substantially alter the function of any improvements required by the 
conceptual master plan. 

E. Solid Waste Improvements.  All residential lots will utilize roll out carts. No specific solid 
waste improvements are anticipated. 

F. Street Trees. The developer desires to provide a streetscape that contains street trees 
along the public street right of ways within a designated 7’ planting strip.  Street trees 
measuring 8’ in height and 1.5” in caliper will be provided along the public street rights-of-
way at a rate of one per 40’ while accommodating driveways. These trees shall adhere to 
the Town’s approved list of street trees.  The HOA and/or homeowner will be completely 
responsible for the health and well-being of the trees.  Maintenance of these trees will be 
specified within the HOA Community Regulations.   

G. Storm Drainage. All stormwater infrastructure shall be designed and constructed to meet 
all requirements of the Town of Winterville. 

H. Erosion Control. All erosion control measures shall be designed and constructed to meet 
all requirements of the Town of Winterville. 

 
 
 
16. Approval Processes 
 
Rezoning & Preliminary Plat Approval and Revision Process shall adhere to the following: 
   
A. The Developer will submit a PUD & Rezoning Plan which indicates the design and 

development pattern for the community. The PUD & Rezoning Plan will be reviewed by 
the Planning Board, and voted on by the Town Council.  Once approved, these two 
documents will constitute the official master plan for the development.     

B. The Planning Director and the Public Works Director shall have the authority to approve 
minor deviations to the PUD and Rezoning Plan provided said deviations remain consistent 
with the spirit and intent of the approvals.   

C. Major deviations and changes to the PUD and Rezoning Plan will require City Council 
approval.   Changes resulting in less intensive density, minor open space shifts, or minor 
road revisions shall not be considered major deviations.    

D. After approval of the PUD & Rezoning plan, The Developer will submit a Preliminary Plat 
which will indicate the lot layout within the approved development pattern for the 
community. The Preliminary Plat will be reviewed by the Planning Board, and voted on 
by the Town Council.   

 

Construction Drawing Approval and Revision Processes: 
 
A. Upon approval of the Preliminary Plat, the developer will engage the town and all 

applicable review agents for Construction Drawing approvals (including but not limited to 
all planning, engineering and Town/NCDOT reviews).   

 
 

81



B. Upon receipt of Construction Drawing approvals, the Developer may schedule all pre-
construction meetings and then begin construction on the required improvements.  The 
Town and all applicable review agents will issue approval letters acknowledging that all 
required permits have been issued. 

C. The Planning Director and the Public Works Director shall have the authority to 
administratively approve all minor deviations to the Construction Drawings provided said 
deviations remain consistent with the spirit and intent of the approved Rezoning and 
Preliminary Plat.     

 

Final Plat Approval Process:   
 

A. Upon completion and approval of the required improvements by the State and/or 
Public Works Department, the developer will submit a Final Plat to the Town and 
applicable review agents for approval.  The Final Plat will conform to the Town’s 
Subdivision Ordinance and approved Construction Drawings. 

B. Once the Final Plat is approved, it will be recorded in the Pitt County Register of Deeds.     
 
Building Permit & Certificate of Occupancy Issuance:   
 

A. No building permit will be issued to any owner/builder in the Development until the 
section in which the lot is located has been final platted and meets all the 
requirements of the approved construction drawings, including the acceptable 
construction of the Town’s roadways. 

B. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be issued until all the required provisions of the 
Construction Drawings, and applicable local, state and federal regulations are met, 
except that, provided all other improvements have been completed or bonded and 
approved by the Town.  All bonded improvements shall be completed as approved 
by the Public Works Department.   

 
17.  Project Phasing and Future Property Annexation: 
 

A project of this size requires phased construction. The entrance location(s) and utilities will 
determine the direction of phasing for this project and all future phases.  The Town and 
Developer recognize that adjacent properties can be included and annexed within this PUD 
by Southbrooknc, LLC or related entities. The PUD as shown contains more than the allowable 
open space per the ordinance.  The developer reserves the right to annex future properties 
with the ability to utilize and apply this open space to those properties.  This project and any 
future annexed properties will altogether have no less than 25% open space.   
 
 
Notes:   
Appendix 1 Conceptual Plan   
Appendix 2 Dimensional Standards Chart  
Appendix 3 Street Cross Sections 

 
 
 

82



Appendix 1 – Conceptual Plan 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

83



 
Appendix 2 - Dimensional Standards Chart 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

84



 
Appendix 3 - Street Cross Section 

 

 
 

85



2571 Railroad Street                Phone (252)215-2358 
PO Box 1459           Fax (252)756-3109 
Winterville, NC 28590            www.wintervillenc.com 

 
Planning and Zoning 

Rezoning Request 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Planning and Zoning Board will meet on Monday, 
November 21, 2022 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, in order to 
consider the following request: 
 
The Coley Group has submitted a rezoning application to rezone Parcels 15006, 11636, 11638, 
82094 and 82096 (245.43 Acres) as shown on the attached map from Agricultural Residential (AR) to 
Conditional District Planned Unit Development (R6 PUD, MR PUD).  The purpose of Planned Unit 
Development is to produce a higher quality development than would otherwise be permitted by 
specifically identifying the location of buildings, uses, architectural design, etc.  
 
Copies of the Zoning Ordinance and Map are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town 
Hall and are available for public inspection by contacting bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the 
Winterville Planning Department at (252) 756-2221 or at wintervillenc.com. 
 
Citizens are encouraged to attend the hearing. Citizens may also view the hearing on the Winterville 
website at www.wintervillenc.com/videos . If for any reason you have difficulty accessing the Town’s 
video page, please go to the Town’s YouTube channel at: 
www.youtube.com/channel/UChejtVcuiD9O3_zzTrrBj4g . 
 
The public may submit written comments to the Town Clerk’s office, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, 
NC 28590, or via email to don.harvey@wintervillenc.com. Please include your name and address. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    

   

 

   

86



  

 
DAVID A. EVANS, JR. 
ANNE EVANS BREWER 
PO BOX 2548 
GREENVILLE, NC 27835      

 
KENNETH SMITH PROPERTIES 
1588 NC 102 E 
AYDEN, NC 28513 

     

 
BROOKSTONE HOMEOWNERS 
ASSOCIATION OF PITT CONTY  
3345 BRIDGE ROAD 
STE #924 
SUFFOLK, VA 23455   

  

 
TARRUS CARR 
TOMEKA CARR 
3004 CASSENA DR 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

 
CHRISTOPHER TAGGART 
OLIVIA TAGGART 
336 HOLLY GROE DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

 
ERICA THOMAS 
330 HOLLY GROE DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

JOSEPH WELLS 
KAITLYN WELS 
324 HOLLY GROE DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

SONJA VEROIN 
MARK VEROIN 
318 HOLLY GROVE DR 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

MCLOY COTTEN 
GLENA COTTEN 
312 HOLLY GROE DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

HANE ABULEDEH 
2201 REMINGTON CT, UNIT A 
GREENVILLE, NC 27834 

     

ANNIE ALLEN MAE LIFE 
ESTATE 
3107 CHURCH ST EXT. 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

ROBERT TUGWELL 
SUSAN TUGWELL 
2436 TRELLIS CT 
RALEIGH, NC 27604 

  

  

BOBBY JEFFERSON 
DENISE JEFFERSON 
527 JIMMIES CREEK DRI 
NEW BERN, NC 28562 

     

JAMI MOSS 
JAMES BEST 
3124 STREAMSIDE LN 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

WILLARD JOYNER 
LOTTIE JOYNER 
3118 STREAMSIDE LN 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

YULIYA GORBACHOVA 
DOYLE MANESS 
31112 STREAMSIDE LN 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

KENNETH WILSON 
JULIE WILSON 
3106 STREAMSIDE LN 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

RILEY DAVIS 
KAYLA DAVIS 
3100 STREAMSIDE LN 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

 
 
 

 
JOHN DEMOTTS 
HANNAH EDSON 
3101 STREAMSIDE LN 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 
       

 
ROMAN PAWLAK 
JIN S KANG 
3105 STREAMSIDE LN 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 
  

  

     

PATRICIA PARKER 
TIARA PARKER 
3109 STREAMSIDE LN 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

EVERCOR CONTRACTING 
4105 CORNWALL CT 
GREENVILLE, NC 27834 

     

RACHEL P ELISE PROPERTY  
343 WINDING MEADOW LN 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 
  

     

 
 
CF KL ASSETS 2021-2 LLC 
875 N MICHIGAN AVE, STE 3218 
CHICAGO, IL 60611 

     

  

LAUREN JONES 
CHRISTOPHER JONES 
386 HOLLY GROE DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

SARAH EMOLYN HARRIS 
382 HOLLY GROE DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

LAUREN WICKS 
JOSHUA PATE 
376 HOLLY GROE DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

BRIAN MCDANIEL 
KRYSTAL MCDANIEL 
370 HOLLY GROE DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

MARTY BAKER 
HEATHER BAKER 
364 HOLLY GROE DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

JERRY MATKINS 
BARKSDALE MATKINS 
1549 MANNING RD 
JAMESVILLE, NC 27846 

  
 87



  

CAVINESS AND CATES 
BUILDING AND DEV. CO. 
639 EXECUTIVE PL 
STE 400 
FAYETTEVILLE, NC 28305      

IRENE LEAHY 
416 HOLLY GROE DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

ERICA WELLS 
MARKUS WELLS 
408 HOLLY GROE DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

SCOTT GRABOSKI 
MYRA GRABOSKI 
1520 WINBLEDON DR AT 207 
GREENVILLE, NC 27858 

     

THOMAS HEATH 
KAYLA HEATH 
400 HOLLY GROE DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

HOLLY GROVE HOA INC 
106 REGENCY BLVD 
GREENVILLE, NC 27834 

  

  

 
WAYLAND A. HUNSUCKER 
PO BOX 1896 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 
      

LOREN BARTZ 
JUSTIN WATTS 
2996 FOX GLOVE DR 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

  
PITT COUNTY SHRINE CLUB 
PO BOX 1845 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

CHARLES VERNON WHITE 
3024 CHURCH STREET EXT 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

WLH DEVELOPMENT LLC 
237 CHURCHHILL DRIVE 
GREENVILLE, NC 27858 

     

PATRICIA MERIZIO 
200 PRANCER DRIVE 
BEAUFORT, NC 28516 

  

  

ATIYHA PROPERTIES, LLC 
1101 EVANS ST 
GREENVILLE, NC 27858 

     

HAPPY TRAIL FARMS LLC 
PO BOX 1863 
GREENVILLE, NC 27835 

     

ROBYN BOND 
9099 MAIL SERVICE CENTER 
ACP 143 
NC CENTRALIZED MAILING NC 276 

  

  

LAURIE ELLIS HOWARD, JR 
TRUST 
1036 MADISON AVE 
SAN DIEGO, CA 92116 

     

LORRAINE R RUCKER 
4433 NORRIS STORE ROAD 
AYDEN, NC 28513 

     

ROBERT L. EDWARDS 
417 AVALON ROAD 
WINSTON SALEM, NC 27104 

  

  

AMANDA M. WILEY 
PO BOX 3592 
GREENVILLE, NC 27835 

     

LEWIS O. TRIPP 
JOE S. TRIPP 
2509 RIVERTOWNE PKWY 
MT PLEASANT, SC 29466 

     

WAYLAND A HUNSUCKER 

SUE ELLEN BRIDGERS 

PO BOX 1896 

WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

 
THE COLEY GROUP 
C/O SCOTT MOORE 
4350 LASSITER AT NORTH 
HILLS, SUITE 256 
RALEIGH, NC 27609      

MARK C. SMITH 
LISA A. SMITH 
447 LAURIE ELLIS ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

COOPER ISLAND 
DEVELOPMENT, LLC 
PO BOX 606 
GREENVILLE, NC 27835 

  

  

DAVID SOPRANO 
MARLENE SOPRANO 
505 NORBERRY DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

GARY ALTHOFF  
LINDA ALTHOFF 
509 NORBERRY DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

WILL KUHN HOMES, LLC 
4226 DUNHAGAN ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

 
LAMONT DANIELS 
526 NORBERRY DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

 
     

 
STEVEN JONES 
DONNA JONES 
532 NORBERRY DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

      

 
JOESEPH WHALEY  
JOAN WHALEY 
538 NORBERRY DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

   
88



 
 
  

WILLIAM MOORE 
CATHY COX 
546 NORBERRY DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

JAIMME MARIE GAFF 
552 NORBERRY DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

JAMES NEYLAND 
CLEMENCIA NEYLAND 
2804 STAMFORD CT 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

HENRY CAYTON JR 
JACQUELYN CAYTON 
563 NORBERRY DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

JOHN HEANEY JR. 
KARYN HAEANEY 
557 NORBERRY DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

MICHAEL CHAMBLEE 
DORETHA CHAMBLEE 
549 NORBERRY DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

TRACY MONTGOMERY 
543 NORBERRY DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

WILLIAM BLOWE 
537 NORBERRY DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

PAUL GARRETT KILLIAN 
531 NORBERRY DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

BENJAMIN HARDY 
BARBARA BOWEN 
525 NORBERRY DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

RICHARD PADO 
MARGARET PADO 
519 NORBERRY DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

JOESEPH PALMER 
DEVONNE PALMER 
513 NORBERRY DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

SHANNON DANIELS 
PAULA TYRE 
2807 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

MARK MATURO  
MARGARET TOMAINO 
2813 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

MAURICE SMITH SR. 
NORKINA SMITH 
2819 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

MONICA RICKS 
2827 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

JASMINE GUISADO 
2831 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

ADDISON TAYLOR 
2839 OAKWOOD DR 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

CAROL GATES 
2845 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

JAMES ROACH 
TERESA ROACH 
2851 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

ROBERT BROCK 
FRANKIE BROCK 
2857 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

YVONNE ARTIS 
2861 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

TAYLOR S JOHNSON 
JAMIE JOHNSON 
2865 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

JAVON BRUMSEY 
DARNESHA BRUMSEY 
2873OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

TIMOTHY BUHLIG 
LAURA BUHLIG 
2887 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

CHERYL GILL 
2893 OAKWOO DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

HUEY SWINDELL 
JOANN SWINDELL 
2899 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

TEMIAS GAVIN 
JALYSA GAVIN 
2905 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

QUNICIA NOBLES 
2909 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

COURTNEY JAHSDOFER 
2915 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  
89



  

THOMAS ALLEN 
TONYA ALLEN 
2927 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

RANDY GARRIS 
BRENDA GARRIS 
2931 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

MELLON DOWNS HOA INC 
3107 EVANS STREET, STE B 
GREENVILLE, NC 27834 

  

  

KEITH RICHARDS 
NICHOLE RICHARDS 
2943 OAKWOOD DRIVE 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

NATHANIEL BRYAN 
2905 VERBENA WAY 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

ERICA MCDONALD 
TIMOTHY MCDONALD 
2909 VERBENA WAY 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

RODNEY MCNEILL 
GERAL MCNEILL 
2908 VERBENA WAY 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

DONNA BLACKWELL 
2904 VERBENA WAY 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

KENETH LAWS 
KENASHA LAWS 
2967 CALLA LILLY LN 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

RUSSELL CLIFTON 
RANDI CLIFTON 
2969 CALLA LILLY LN 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

EUGENE NICHOLS JR. 
MARY NICHOLS 
2971 CALLA LILLY LN 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

ANDREW GLINIAK  
RACHEL GLINIAK 
2968 CALLA LILLY LN 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

LILIANA MENDEZ 
2966 CALLA LILLY LN 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

WILLIE COOPER JR. 
CAMILLE COOPER 
2999 FOX GLOVE DR 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

BRIAN WATERWALL 
3001 FOX GLOVE DR 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

KENDRICK HENDERSON 
ASHLEY HUNER 
3000 FOX GLOVE DR 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

 

     

 

  

  

 

     

 

     

 

  

  

 

     

 

     

 

  

 
 
  

 

     

 

     

 

  

  

 

     

 

     

 

  
 90



 

 Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT The Coley Group c/o Scott Moore 

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST Conditional District – R-6 PUD / MR PUD 

CONDITIONS Planned Unit Development – Unified Development Plan 

LOCATION Church Street Ext. / Laurie Ellis Road 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 15006, 11636, 11638, 82096, 82094 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Two (2) Community Meetings were held on October 20, 2022 at 
Winterville Town Hall. 
Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on November 2, 2022.  Notification was posted on site on 
October 28, 2022.  106 properties were mailed notification.   

TRACT SIZE 245 +/- acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Agricultural/Wooded 

 
 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Agricultural / Vacant/ Wooded 

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N R-12.5, R-10 Single Family Residential  

 W R-10, GB Agricultural, Commercial 

E AR  Agricultural, Wooded 

S R-15, R-10, AR  Single Family Residential, 
Agricultural  

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
AR  

 
R-6 PUD; MR PUD 

MAX DENSITY 2 per acre 2.5 per acre 

 
TYPICAL USES 

AR - Low-density residential and 
agricultural uses; where urban 
development is expected.  
 

(R-6 PUD) Medium Density; 
single-family residential.   (MR 
PUD) Medium Density; single 
family attached residential.  

91



 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS Potential wetlands 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS Southeast Drainage Lateral SC-35A, Tributary of 
off Swift Creek 

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Subdivision plan required 
**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district.

 
 

 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Laurie Ellis Road – NCDOT Road 
Church Street Ext – NCDOT Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

Laurie Ellis Rd– 2200 
Church Street Ext - 180 

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS Required. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY Per site plan, the development will connect to 
three (3) existing stub streets and provide seven 
(7) additional stub streets to surrounding 
properties.  

OTHER N/A 

 

 

 

92



 
 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed PUD zoning districts would allow land uses that are compatible with the 
general character of the area.  The adjacent properties are zoned likewise and would 
provide a smooth transition from one district to another. 
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as a Suburban Residential character 

area. The requested PUD zoning districts are consistent with this character area as 

defined by the future land use designation and will be within the density requirements 

(proposed 2.5 units per acre – Suburban Residential allows 1-3 units per acre.) 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Suburban Residential - General Character:   

1. Larger lot, single family detached residential.  Generally around 3 dwelling units per 

acre, with smaller lots occasionally if minimum standards for open space and amenities 

are exceeded.   

 

(Land Use) Policy 1:  Encourage a balanced tax base while managing 
growth:   
 

Strategy 1.1:  Utilize the Future Land Use Map and character areas when 
considering land use decisions. 

• Identified as Suburban Residential Character Area. 
 
Strategy 1.3:  Encourage a logical progression of development and 
extension of utilities and discourage leap-frog development. 

• The proposed development is located adjacent to existing subdivisions 
and would not be considered a leap-frog development. 

 
Policy 5:  Maintain and improve neighborhood character:   
 

Strategy 5.2:  Encourage open space and amenities in new development. 

• The proposed development would provide ample open space and 
community amenities. 

 
(Economic Development) Policy 3:  Reinforce the Town’s identity as a 
family-friendly community. 

 
Strategy 3.1:  Support rezonings to residential used in the Suburban 

93



Residential areas identified on the Future Land Use Map. 

• Property identified as Suburban Residential Character Area. 
 

(Infrastructure & Mobility) Policy 2:  Coordinate connectivity, street and 
sidewalk standards. 
 

Strategy 2.2:  Require or incentivize the connection of stub streets to 
adjacent properties to allow for future connection of local or collector streets. 

• Per the site development plan, the proposed development will provide 
seven (7) stub streets for future connection with adjacent properties, in 
addition to connecting with three (3) existing stub streets in Holly Grove 
and Melon Downs. 

Strategy 2.4:  Require sidewalks in new developments. 

• The proposed street section will include sidewalks and street trees. 
 

(Parks & Natural Resources) Policy 6:  Encourage quality open space.   
 

Conservation subdivision design that includes open space and 
amenities should be encouraged in Suburban Residential areas. 

• The requested PUD design does just that, it will be a Conservation 
Subdivision Design that will focus on preserving the areas of 
environmental concern in permanent open space and provide quality 
open space areas and amenities within the community. 

 

  

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

Community Outreach 

The applicant hosted two Community Meetings at Winterville Town Hall on October 20, 2022 
to provide information and receive feedback from the surrounding property owners and 
community leaders. 
 
Staff Analysis 
The 245.43-acre property is currently vacant.  The property North of the request is zoned R-
12.5 and is a single-family residential subdivision consisting of 62 lots (Holly Grove); R-10 
single-family residential subdivision consisting of 97 lots (Laurie Meadows); r-12.5 single-
family residential subdivision consisting of 86 lots (Mellon Downs).   West (across Church 
Street Ext) of the request is zoned R-10 and GB with existing commercial uses.   South of the 
request is zoned R-15, R-10 and AR and consist of a single-family residential subdivision 
consisting of 33 existing lots and 49 additional lots approved (Brookstone).  East of the 
property is zoned AR and is partially wooded/agricultural. 
 
The PUD Zoning District rezoning request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
Zoning Ordinance, the  Future Land Use Plan and is compatible with the existing development 
and trends in the surrounding area. The proposed PUD zoning district falls within the density 

94



recommendations provided within the Suburban Residential character area.  
 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request for the 245.43 acres from AR 

to Conditional District PUD Zoning District (R- PUD and MR PUD). 

 

Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended approval on November 

21, 2022. 

95



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: Old Business 

Meeting Date: December 12, 2022 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Award of Contract to Tripp Brothers Inc. for Ange Street Sidewalk Project. 

Action Requested: Approve the Contract. 

Attachment: Bid Tabulation, Notice of Award, and Letter of Recommendation from The Wooten Company. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager Date: 12/5/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 12/5/2022 ☒ TM: 12/8/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 12/8/2022

Supporting Documentation 

This contract is for the construction of sidewalks and pedestrian crossings on Ange Street from the 

intersections of Primrose, Barrell, and Windmill on the East side of Ange Street, and Blount and Division 

Street on the West side of Ange Street. The new sidewalk will extend mostly on the West side of Ange Street 

adjacent to the AG Cox Softball field. There will also be handicap accessible ramps installed at the 

crosswalks. 

Bids were solicited from eight local contractors with only one responding. Tripp Brothers Inc. of Ayden was 

the only bid. We are recommending the contract be awarded to Tripp Brothers Inc. as they are a responsible 

bidder and have done quality work for the Town in the past. 

The bid was $131,840.75 which was lower than the engineers estimates. 

Budgetary Impact: The project will cost $131,840.75. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the contract. 

96



97



98



Notice of Award 
 Project:: 

  Ange Street Sidewalk Improvements 

Owner:

 Date: 

  December 1, 2022 

Owner: 

  Town of Winterville 

Owner’s Contract No.: 

Contract: Engineer's Project No.: 

  2853-AV 

Bidder: 

 Tripp Bros, Inc. 

Bidder's Address: (send Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested) 

  4158 Norris Store Road 

  Ayden, NC 28513 

You are notified that your Bid dated November 30, 2022 for the above Contract has been considered.  
You are the Successful Bidder and are awarded a Contract for the following: 

Ange Street Sidewalk Improvements 

The Contract Price of your Contract is One Hundred Thirty-One Thousand Eight Hundred Forty 
Dollars and Seventy-Five Cents ($131,840.75). 

4 copies of the proposed Contract Documents (except Drawings) accompany this Notice of Award. 

1 set of the Drawings will be delivered separately or otherwise made available to you immediately. 

You must comply with the following conditions precedent within 10 days of the date you receive this 
Notice of Award. 

1. Deliver to the Owner 1 fully executed counterparts of the Contract Documents.

2. Deliver with the executed Contract Documents the Contract Bonds as specified in the Instructions to
Bidders, General Conditions Paragraph 5.01, and Supplementary Conditions Paragraph SC-5.01.

3. Other conditions precedent:

Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle Owner to consider you in 
default, annul this Notice of Award and declare your Bid security forfeited. 

Within 10 days after you comply with the above conditions, Owner will return to you one fully 
executed counterpart of the Contract Documents. 

Town of Winterville 
Owner 

By:  
Authorized Signature 

Mayor 
Title 

Copy to Engineer 

Acceptance of Notice 

Receipt of the above Notice of Award is hereby acknowledged by 

this the    day of   , 20 . 

By:  

Title:  

99



100



101



102



103



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: December 12, 2022 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Downtown Parking Update. 

Action Requested: N/A. 

Attachment: N/A. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 12/9/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 12/9/2022 ☒ TM: 12/9/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 12/9/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town Manager will give a short verbal update on the status of the Downtown Parking Project, including 
the directional change for Church Street (behind Town Hall). 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: N/A. 

 

104



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: December 12, 2022 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Approval for County Commissioner Mark Smith to Fulfill his Term as a CMSD Board Member. 

Action Requested: Approval of Request. 

Attachment: Information Regarding Last Reappointment of Mark Smith to the CMSD Board. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 12/9/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 12/9/2022 ☒ TM: 12/9/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 12/9/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

Commissioner Mark Smith has requested to remain as a Board Member on the CMSD Board. Council voted 
to reappoint then Councilman Smith on August 29, 2020 at the Regular Meeting of the Winterville Town 
Council. 

There is one requirement for someone to serve on the CMSD Board and that is that the person must reside 
within the District. Commissioner Smith meets that criteria. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the Request. 

 

105



106



107



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: December 12, 2022 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Council Endorsement of Sheppard Library Proposal Regarding the Sheppard Library Board 
Composition. 

Action Requested: Council Endorsement. 

Attachment: Information Supplied by Greg Needham, Library Director Regarding Said Proposed Change. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 12/9/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 12/9/2022 ☒ TM: 12/9/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 12/9/2022 

Supporting Documentation 

Greg Needham will be asking the Pitt County Commissioners and Greenville City Council for a change in the 
Bylaws as follows: 

The Sheppard Memorial Library Board of Trustees is proposing a change to the Trustee Bylaws, such that 
the Town of Winterville would be given the authority to appoint an additional Trustee to the Library Board. If 
the Winterville Town Council is in favor of this change, the proposal would be shared also with the Pitt 
County Commissioners and Greenville City Council for their approval of the change. If that approval is 
granted, the SML Board of Trustees would vote to amend the Bylaws to enact the change. Please note that 
the same proposal is being made to the Town of Bethel, as both the Blount Library in Bethel and the 
Winterville Library are longstanding members of the Sheppard Memorial Library system. 

Mr. Needham is requesting the endorsement of the Winterville Town Council to proceed with said Proposal. 

Budgetary Impact: N/A. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council Endorsement. 

 

108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120


	00_20221212_Agenda_Amended
	10_01a_Presentation_Abstract_21-22_FY_Auditv3
	10_01b_2022 Winterville CAFR Presentation
	10_02a_Presentation_Abstract_Sub_Development_Feev2
	10_02b_221212_Winterville_SDF Presentation
	11_01a_PH_Abstract_Rezoning_Request_Parcels_67224_68790_70655v3
	11_01b_Rezoning_Application_Parcels_67224_68790_70655
	11_01c_Rezoning_Map_Parcels_67224_68790_70655
	11_01d_Legal_Description_Parcels_67224_68790_70655
	11_01e_Notice_of_Rezoning_Update_Parcels_67224_68790_70655
	11_01e_Public_Hearing_Rezoning_Notice_Parcels_67224_68790_70655
	11_01f_Notice_of_Rezoning_Parcels_67224_68790_70655
	11_01g_Address_Labels_Adjacent_Owners_Parcels_67224_68790_70655
	11_01h_Staff_Report_Parcels_67224_68790_70655
	13_01a_Consent_Abstract_Minutesv2
	13_01b_20221114_Regular_Meeting_Minutes_Draft
	13_02a_Consent_Abstract_Calendarsv2
	13_02b_Draft_Regular_Council_Meeting_Calendar_2023
	13_02c_Draft_Budget_Calendar_2023-2024
	13_03a_Consent_Abstract_Budget_Amend_22-23-4v2
	13_03b_Budget_Amendment_2022-2023-4
	13_04a_Consent_Abstract_Southbrook_Rezoning_Set_PHv2
	13_04b_Zoning_Application_Southbrook_Rezoning
	13_04c_Boundary_Survey_Southbrook_Rezoning
	13_04d_Map_Southbrook_Rezoning_and_PUD_Plan
	13_04e_Legal_Description_Southbrook_Rezoning
	13_04f_PUD_Document_Southbrook_Rezoning
	13_04g_Notice_of_Rezoning_Southbrook_Rezoning
	13_04h_Address_Labels_Southbrook_Rezoning
	13_04i_Staff_Report_Southbrook_Rezoning
	14_01a_Old_Abstract_Ange_St_Sidewalk_Contractv2
	14_01b_Bid_Tabulation
	14_01c_Notice_of_Award
	14_01d_Letter_of_Recommendation
	14_02a_Old_Abstract_Parking_Update
	14_03a_Old_Abstract_CMSD_ Appt_Mark_Smith
	14_03b_CMSD_Appointment_Mark_Smith
	15_01a_New_Abstract_Library_Proposal
	15_01b_Sheppard_Board_Composition_Proposal



